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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

P HE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 L =—FF+ —H=1—HIFEZF

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—TRF —T—+F —T-N\F —TNF ZB-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$°000
FET FBT FET FET FEx
RESULTS ES

Revenue WA 104,367 110,174 97,225 98,492 49,211
Loss before income tax MRS AEE (45,865) (10,500) (23,210) (14,635) (9,243)
Income tax expense FTisHiRX (390) (371) (41) (79) (81)
Loss for the year FREE (46,255) (10,871) (23,251) (14,714) (9,324)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHAE
Total assets BELHE 149,790 112,445 150,833 141,204 140,879
Total liabilities BEEE (74,339) (45,906) (42,255) (24,288) (25,395)
Total equity friELazs 75,451 66,539 108,578 116,916 115,484

—= =
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my
pleasure to present the Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The countrywide outbreak of COVID-19 had flogged demand
of luxury products in the first half of 2020 and there was no
exception for the gold jewellery. The traditional sales season
of the Chinese New Year holidays was eroded. Fortunately,
the epidemic was soon contained by the Mainland China
Government through strict controls of social activities. While
inventory stocked up by the retailers before the greeting season
would need a longer period than usual to digest, demand
from retailers remained weak for most of the months of 2020.
Following recovery of the economy and the retail market from
the third quarter, the Group started to record sales in Q4 of
2020.

Compared with the Jewellery Products segment, the IT
products and Services segment was less susceptible to the
COVID-19. The segment managed revenue of HK$39,717,000
for the year although there was a drop of 38% from 2019.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their
dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$8,717,000 (2019: HK$14,680,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$49,211,000 (2019: HK$98,492,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$9,894,000 of the Group's revenue during
the year (2019: HK$35,331,000). Revenue from enterprise
software products dropped by 52% to HK$13,328,000 (2019:
HK$27,587,000). Revenue from professional services also
dropped by 21% to HK$25,989,000 (2019: HK$32,891,000).
Systems integration business had no reported revenue during
the year (2019: HK$2,683,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020 rapidly
spread over the country that business activities were put to
a halt after the Chinese New Year holidays. The economy
contracted by 6.8% year-on-year in Q1. Following the
implementation of strict social activity restrictions, the epidemic
was contained and the economy rebounded from Q2. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’'s GDP
managed a growth 2.3% in 2020, although at a much slower
rate than 6.1% in 2019 and 6.6% in 2018.

Gold price per ounce started in 2020 at USD1,511, climbed to
its record high of United States dollar (“US$"”) 2,070 and closed
at US$1,887 that a gain of 25% was recorded. In China, while
Renminbi (“RMB") appreciated in the year and offset some of
the gain, the local gold price in RMB showed a milder gain of
14.6%.

When all luxury product markets in China were impacted, there
was no exception for the gold and jewellery market. According
to the World Gold Council, demand of jewellery fell by 65% y-o-y
in Q1 2020. Demand started to recover in Q2 and its decline
narrowed in Q3 but the full year demand remained dipped by
35% to 416 tonnes, the lowest annual total for China since 2009.

The Group had adjusted the business strategies from retails
to wholesale since 2019. As the market started to recover,
the retailers tended to reduce their inventories. Wholesales
businesses were not benefited until the second half year when
the retail sales were gaining momentum. The Group resumed
sales in Q4 2020 accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR TN

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

On the other hand, income from IT products and Services
segment also dropped but it represented 80% of total revenue
of the year since the segment’s businesses were less
susceptible to the impacts of economy shutdown and social
distancing policies.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$23,524,000
(2019: HK$25,994,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s issued shares were
1,947,690,000 shares (2019: 1,947,690,000 shares).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing
ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose,
the Group defined net debt as total debt, which comprises
long-term and short-term borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity comprised equity attributable to
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The gearing
ratio is not presented, it was nearly zero (2019: zero).

TREASURY POLICY

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in
managing the Group's cash and maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take
advantage of future growth opportunities.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group does not have significant exposure on foreign
currency risk. The functional currencies of the Group's entities
are principally denominated in HK$ and RMB. The Group
has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the respective
Group entities such as USD. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

FUNDS FROM ISSUES OF ORDINARY
SHARES IN 2018 AND 2019 AND
UTILISATION

The Company had issued 594,230,000 ordinary shares by Rights
Issue on 29 March 2018. The funds of approximately HK$57
million raised were to support the Group’s development of the
sales of gold and jewellery products businesses in Mainland
China in order to strengthen its income stream and maximise
return to the Shareholders. According to the plan formulated
early 2018 when the demand of gold and jewellery in China
was climbing, the Group intended to use the net proceeds on
the following items:

1) approximately HK$15 million for staff recruitment;

2) approximately HK$20 million for strengthening gold and
jewellery product design and brand marketing;

3) approximately HK$5 million for launching an e-commerce
sales platform to increase the sales channel of gold and
jewellery products;

4) approximately HK$4 million for establishing new
representative office in Shanghai to facilitate marketing of
gold and jewellery products and business development;
and,

5) the remaining proceeds of approximately HK$13 million
for upgrading the Group's supply chain management
system and other working capital purposes.

Subsequent to an observable reverse of sentiment of the retail
market brought by US-China trade tension and surging gold
prices, the Group had invested approximately HK$30 million in
building up the inventories at relatively lower prices in second
half year of 2018 and focuses were shifted to wholesales
businesses which were less dependent on sales talent and its
own distribution channels but with thinner gross margin. The
adjustment was proved successful as wholesale businesses
contributed to doubling the revenue from sales of gold and
jewellery in 2019.

Futhermore, the Company issued 165,000,000 ordinary shares
by placement on 21 May 2019. Approximately HK$17 million
were raised for general working capital where HK$7 million
would be used for meeting the operating and administration
expenses of the Company. The funds were fully utilised
according to the purposes of the placement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR TN

FUNDS FROM ISSUES OF ORDINARY
SHARES IN 2018 AND 2019 AND

UTILISATION (continued)

BREFBEERFEAER )

REB-NFR-Z-NFRITEE

In 2020, HK$8 million of the net proceeds from the right issues R-ZE-FTF - R-_Z— \FEBHRKRBTLE

of ordinary shares in 2018 were reallocated from its intended
use to cover the operating and administration expenses of the
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Company.
Uses of net proceeds from issues of ordinary shares
ERRAEHEFERE
Upgrade
supply chain
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Gold and i system and Operating
jewellery Establish  other worklnﬂ an
product design Shanghai capital ~ administration
_ Staff andbrand  e-Commerce representative (includin expenses of
Total recruitment marketing  sales platform office '"{fgmﬁé the Company
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BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT AEAT AEAT ABAT
Net proceeds from issues of ordinary ~ R-E—\E=E BB
sfares by righs issue on 29 e Bk ﬂ%ﬂﬁi TSR
2018 and intended uses ENRTAR 57.0 15.0 20 50 40 13.0 -
Reallocation of uses of net proceeds BN AEMENESE, Bl - 100) 99 - - 198 -
Amounts utised during 2018 R\ EBRLHE 39) 0.1) 09 : - (28] -
Balances of unutiised net proceeds ~ RZE-NFTZA=T-HR
35 at 31 December 2018 and “E2-NEF-A-BR%E
1 January 2019 EibaicE Vs ko 282 49 93 5.0 40 s s
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Net proceeds from issues of ordinary W= F—-AERR-+-RES
shares by placement on 21 May 2019 EER{TEERFGHET
and intended uses EhiERs 17, - - - - 101 70
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Balances of unutiised net proceeds  RZE-NFTZA=T-Hi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DN

FUNDS FROM ISSUES OF ORDINARY
SHARES IN 2018 AND 2019 AND
UTILISATION (continued)

The Group believed that the gold and jewellery market in
Mainland China would take a longer time to restore. The original
agenda for the funds from rights issue had been either slowed
down or suspended. The unutilised funds of HK$7.2 million as

at 31 December 2020 might be further reallocated as working
capital for supporting operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION ORDISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any other significant investment and

material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
a group of two subsidiaries with total consideration of
HK$100,000, resulting in net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
amounting to HK$308,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities and material capital commitment (2019: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any mortgage or charge over its assets
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had
no significant subsequent event.

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the turnover of the
Jewellery Products segment and the IT Products and Services
segment amounted to HK$9,894,000 (2019: HK$35,331,000)
and HK$39,317,000 (2019: HK$63,161,000) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the number of employees of the
Group was 46 (2019: 103). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Gold prices will be generally supported by continuing low
interest rates in 2021. It is believed that global economic
growth will recover from its dismal performance of 2020.
However, further gains in gold price will be limited unless
political risks resume and undercut demand for US dollars.

Given the positive link between economic growth and demand,
gold jewellery demand of China will continue to improve in
2021. It is expected that China’'s economy will maintain its
strength and consumer disposable income will grow even
faster. Chinese policy makers have positioned domestic
consumption as a priority in coming years. Having experienced
the strong sales in the last few months of 2020, market
participants are optimistic and keen on raising their inventory.

While retailers with weak brand value and problematic cash
flows have left the market, the industry will be in a much
healthier position. In terms of product segments, the heritage
gold jewellery products which has performed strongly in 2020
among high-end consumers whose are less impacted will
continue to dominate the market. Younger buyers with lower
budget gravitate towards lighter, more affordable and trendier,
lightweight gold jewellery in modern designs.

The Group is optimistic of the gold jewellery market of China.
Aside from the traditional businesses, the Group is exploring
different on-line sales models. The Group has started allied with
certain emerging on-line jewellery retailers of major platforms
in China. These new businesses may make some good
contributions to the sales revenue of 2021. Since effectiveness
of these attempts still needs to be observed, the Group will
keep tracking the market carefully and develop new distribution
channels for boosting sales.

For the IT Products and Services segment, the Group will keep

looking for opportunities which have synergies with its core
business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to
ensure that the Group’s business activities and decision-
making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner. The Company has compiled with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in the Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020
except where otherwise stated.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group's business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia

Ms. NA Xin

(1)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group’s direction and strategy. Details of the attendance
of the Board of Directors are as follows:

(2)

EEE s
EEE22E

EXe8FRLRTOREH - Was it
W& ERE  YERNAEEZ TR R
REE - EFEGHFEERZFRET

30 Mar 2020 12 May 2020 15 May 2020 14 Aug 2020 13 Nov 2020

—E-BE —ECEF —ECEF —ECEF —EC"EE

=A=tH FA+=H FATEHAE NA+WE +-A+=H

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HEFLE v v v v v
Ms. LI Xia EEuL v v v v v
Mr. CHEN Yin BRE AL v/ v/ v X HRE g
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MR KL v/ v/ v/ / /
Ms. NA Xin i v/ v v/ X HRE v/
Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia HEELT X HE v/ X HE v/ X B

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to review
company business pipeline, receivables, and business
unit performance. Senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) meets with Business Unit
Management every week to review project status, and
business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary has assisted the chairman of the
Board in preparing the agenda for each meeting and the
minutes of such meetings are kept by the Company’s
company secretary or other duly authorised person. All
minutes are open for inspection by any Director on reasonable
notice. Draft(s) and final version of the minutes are sent to
Directors for comment and records, respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company's independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

The function of the independent non-executive Directors
includes but not limited to participating in Board meetings
and meetings of committees to bring an independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. The written terms of reference
for their functions in the respective committees; namely
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are available on the Websites of Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every newly appointed Director
should receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee also attended a number of seminars/courses
in relation to continuous professional developments
organised by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants during the year in 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in
accordance with Rules 5.05 (2) and 5.28 to 5.29 and
Code C3 of the Code Provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules was adopted.

The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Na Xin and Ms. Zhao Xiaxia, all
of whom are independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system of the Group.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(4) BHZEE®)

The summary of work of the audit committee during the HAEAZESeN TEREMT -

period is as follows:—

- met with the external auditor, reviewed and made — EANBRZ BT e E - A QAT
recommendations for the Board’s approval on FE  HFHRFERE - WRRE
the annual, interim and quarterly reports of the HiEsmtHeEEe it F
Company;

- reviewed and approved audit fee; = EERUAEZEER

= recommended the re-appointment of Grant — BERERENEER)STMESAT
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor, subject to AR AR AZEAE - BERENRR
the Shareholders’ approval at the annual general RRAFERg LR
meeting;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk — e NN S S S N e
management and internal control systems; and HIE R &

- reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications = b /NG A*ﬁ'&ﬁﬂ%lii&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%??
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting HAER BEITER MK
and financial reporting function. 5 o

Details of the attendance of members at Audit Committee EHEZECKERFEEZ ZEHBENT -

meeting are as follows:

30 Mar 2020 7 May 2020 15 May 2020 14 Aug 2020 13 Nov 2020

SB-RF SBSRF ZBSRF —2S8F C20%F

=HA=+H FAtHE #HA+HB NAtWE +-A+=H

Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRBE S v v 4 v 4
Ms. NA Xin il v/ v v X HRE v
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEBRT X BRIE X g X TRFE v/ X BRE

TECTFFR HEERERERAR 17
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on
10 May 2005. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management’'s remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of remuneration committee
in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lam
Tin Faat, and Ms. Li Xia attended the Remuneration
Committee Meeting on 17 December 2020.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; and

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
Directors’ fees of independent non-executive
Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee is
to assist the Board to deal with matters in relation to
appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of nomination committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, and Ms. Li Xia attended the Nomination Committee
Meeting on 17 December 2020.

The summary of work of the nomination committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed the existing Board’s structure, size and
composition; and

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board regularly to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
six directors. Three of the directors are independent
non-executive directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. Our Company Secretary is currently
Mr. Chan Hoi Keung Terence who were appointed on 12
November 2018. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the process of implementing the Board's
decision, as well as communications between the
members of the Board and the management team of the
Company, and advising the Board and its committees on all
governance matters.
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TRER/RE
(8) COMPLIANCE OF CODE FOR

(9)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirms that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Company’'s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 which reflect true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other
inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the Group's external auditor. The statement by Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities to the shareholders on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 51 to 56 of this
annual report.
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(10) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the
auditors to the Group is as follows:

(10) X BETEN <=

BE—E-TF+-A=+—ALFE -
2B 24 SR 0 B R S AR
MemT -

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fees breakdown by accounting firms B RRE:HETEID
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited BE (BB ) DT E%AT
BRAR
Annual audit services FEZERT 620 720
Non-audit services rendered in AEE P HRERE
relation to the Group's interim report 7 IERZ AR S - =
620 720
Other professional CPA firms HithE ) E2ETAITT
Annual audit services FEZERY = 115
Total FEE 620 835

(11) RISK MANAGEMENT AND

22

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control system of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risk rather than eliminating the
risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.

The Board has delegated to the management team of
the Company the implementation of such internal control
systems as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnels and individual business unit
heads of the Group maintain and monitor the compliance
of these internal control systems and procedures on an
ongoing basis and report variances to senior management.
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(12) INTERNAL CONTROL

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the internal
control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

o the internal control and accounting systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to material assets of the Group are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are identified
and monitored, material transactions are executed
in accordance with management'’s authorisation and
the accounts are reliable for publication; and

o there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(13) COMMUNICATION WITH

SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are
separate resolutions for separate issues proposed at the
general meetings.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors on relevant information on the Group’s business
in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements.

A) General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a
good opportunity for communication between the
shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be
held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting.
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(13) COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT (Continued)

24

A)

B)

C)

General Meetings (Continued)

The 2021 AGM is scheduled on 21 May 2021. A
circular containing, among other matters, further
information will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company together with this report in
accordance with the Bye-Laws, the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or
more shareholders of the Company holding as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 (3) of the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All such enquiries shall be
in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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(14) ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and he should invite the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code, independent non-executive Director and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include
answering guestions through the general meetings, the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements
and circulars on the Company’s website at http://www.hkjewelry.
net/ and meetings with investors and the Shareholders. News
update of the Group's business development and operation are
also available on the website.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has formulated and implemented its
guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the
confidentially requirement and fulfil the disclosure obligation. The
guidelines includes, but not limited to, the procedures as follows:

° The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information;

° The Group has stipulated policy on handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure and waiver to the
disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures;

o The Group authorised only the executive Directors and
company secretary for responding to external enquiries
about Group's affairs; and

° Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the website of GEM and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the period.
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The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
published by the Stock Exchange as Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The main purpose of the report is to disclose the
Group's approach in the social and environmental responsibility
as well as its vision for sustainable development strategies.

Subsequent to the consultations and reviews of the ESG
Reporting Guide and related listing rules, the Stock Exchange
will implement the consultation proposals, with modifications,
reflecting the comments received that the changes will be
effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 July
2020. New requirements include:—

1. A Board statement will be required to set out the Board's
consideration of ESG matters, application of Reporting
Principles “materiality”, “quantitative” and “consistency”;
and explanation of reporting boundaries of ESG reports;

2. Disclosure of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted and may impact the Group;

3 Amending the “Environmental” key performance
indicators (“KPIs") to require disclosure of relevant
targets; and

KPlIs

4. Upgrading the disclosure obligation of all “Social”

to “comply or explain”
While these new requirements will be fully implemented in the

next year, this report adopted parts of the new requirement as
the transition.
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BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of Board, | am pleased to present the ESG report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. This report
demonstrates our ongoing achievements and commitment to
enhancing our sustainability performance in areas including
Employment and Labor Practice, Environmental Protection,
Operating Practices, Social Community, Public Health and
Corporate Governance which are relevant and material to the
Group’s businesses and operations.

During the COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, the Group managed to adopt effective precautionary
measures that no case of inflection of our staff in the working
place was reported. Although operations had been disrupted
in different extent, implementations of the Group's policies in
the areas covered by this report were not adversely affected.
While the Group's operations were substantially residing in
Mainland China, raw data for presenting in this report were
collected from our operation units in Mainland China according
to requirements of the Board.

As threats of climate changes brought by pollutions are
intensifying, the Board recognises the needs to make further
contributions to conservation. The Board will take such actions
as necessary to reduce the paper and energy consumptions in
the day-to-day operations. Corresponding data will be collected,
analyses and concisely addressed.

The Board is committed to fulfil social obligations by
encouraging a collaborative workplace culture and our
colleagues and business associates will bring and extend our
positive culture through their families and friends to rest of the
community. We shall continue to show our commitment to
understanding the needs of our stakeholders, delivering high-
quality services to our clients, empowering the community
where we operate for a sustainable future.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is principally engaged in development, sales and
implementation of enterprise software products, systems
integration services and design and sales of gold and jewellery
products and investment holding. Determined to establish a
sustainable business model, the Group aims to create positive
impacts for key stakeholder groups including shareholders,
employees, suppliers, customers and the community, etc., and
strike a balance between profit, planet and people.

The major environmental and social aspects of concern in
respect of the Group’s business include packaging materials
consumption, customer service and talent management, etc.
Spearheaded by the CEO, these environmental and social
aspects are measured and managed by various departments
including but not limited to finance, administration and the
operation departments.

While we are committed to bearing our share of social
responsibility as a responsible corporate citizen, we are devoted
to protecting employees’ rights, providing them training for
continuous development and creating a safe and healthy
workplace.

We believe ensuring stringent product quality control is the
foundation for success. In addition to complying with applicable
rules and regulations, the Group also maintains effective
supplier management by assessing suppliers’ environmental
and social performance. While our operations do not have any
significant impact on the environment and the society, we
strive to minimise any potential negative impacts.
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MATERIALITY ANALYSES

Subject Area
TEHE

BEEERMDM

Most material aspects in the subject area

EFRAEENRR

Employment and Labour practices

Protect employees’ rights and welfares

Ensure employees’ occupation health and safety
Provide training and development

BEESLTER

R R E RS EER

EREENBEEREERZE

RfE IR

Operating practices

Ensure product and service quality

Maintain high Ethical Standard and observing local laws and

legislations
HEEN

EREMNMREEE
ERREREETE

STEHEARER

Environmental protection

Minimise Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Observe environmental laws
Minimise packaging material consumption

RIFRE BERDRERBIN
BTRFOAD
LRERYH

Social Community

A Ol f5 1 & 3R

Contribution to Community Development

Public Health (Epidemic)

Protect health of employees

Work with the Government to fight against epidemic

Keep employment

RHBECRE) RIZ(EBR2FE
HEERFA R

RS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees’ Rights and Welfares

Our policies on recruitment, remuneration, welfare, assessment
and promotion are established on the basis of relevant laws
and regulations. Employee welfares including sick leave, annual
leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave and parental leave
are provided according to legal requirements and related
guidelines. Computation of remuneration and compensation
are clearly communicated to employees during their induction
training. The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to employment including the Employment Ordinance in
Hong Kong; the Labour Law of the People’'s Republic of China
and the Labour Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China.
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During the year, the Group observed no incidents of
violations of any relevant labour laws and regulations related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfares.

As on 31 December 2020, most of the employees are located
in Mainland China. Workforce distributions are as follows:

Gender Profile

14 51 53

2020 2019

ot e 3

40%

I Male
i

We place high importance on employees’ workplace and
motivation as they are pivotal to the Group's long-term growth.
We provide equal opportunity for all employees and ensure
that they are not discriminated on gender, age, race, religion
and marital status etc. Procedures are established for annual
evaluation of employees’ performances based on merit and
experience, which becomes a reference for remuneration
review and promotion. Year-end bonus and appropriate
promotion opportunities are offered to employees with
outstanding performance. Responsible managers are required to
conduct assessment in a fair manner. Employees may express
their opinions or grievances regarding the assessment, position
transfer and promotion directly to the management or the
administrative department.

In addition, the Group encourages active communication
among employees for building a positive corporate culture. We
organise annual dinner and various festive activities which build
stronger employee relationships and enhance team cohesion
within the Group.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group's operations do not involve significant safety
risk. Nevertheless, we do not overlook the responsibility
to safeguard employees’ health and safety. In accordance
with the Labor Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the
Production Safety Law of the People’'s Republic of China and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, we have established various
management requirements relevant to occupational health and
safety. Appropriate liability insurance has been maintained for
all directors and employees to provide coverage to them for
risks associated with business operations of the Company. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually to match job content
of employees. During the year, the Group did not record any
cases of work-related fatalities or injuries, and was not aware
of any non-compliance with laws and regulations having a
significant impact relating to occupational health and safety.

For the business of jewellery products, we emphasise fire
prevention and anti-theft measures in offices and retail shops.
We highly value safety training of employees. We have a 'Safety
System for Sales Assistants’ that guides them how to better
the implementation of safety protection work. Meanwhile, the
Group organises regular fire drills for all employees annually
to ensure they are familiar with appropriate ways of handling
fire accidents, protecting personal safety of customers and
employees themselves under emergency situations.

Training and Development

Talents are the key to corporate sustainable development
and the Group spares no effort in training its employees. We
arrange appropriate training for employees of all categories in
order to improve their knowledge and skills corresponding to
their respective duties, thereby improving the Group’s service
quality.
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All new employees are required to receive induction training
upon joining the Group, which helps them fully understand
the Group’s corporate culture and management standards and
their job duties. Senior employees are required to provide on-
the-spot instructions with reasonable arrangements to allow
mutual matching between new and senior employees, enabling
better adaptation of new employees to job requirements and
duties. In addition, department heads such as shop managers
coordinate with the human resources department to formulate
suitable training programs as required, based on employees’
development needs.

For training of the seniors, the Group strictly abides by the
Corporate Governance Code to provide orientation training to
any newly appointed directors. Training programs in relation to
continuous professional development are arranged to ensure
they are aware of their overall responsibilities, thereby leading
the Company on the path to development. During the year, the
Group provided trainings to all employees in the business of
jewellery products record.

The Group is committed to providing employees with a practical
development platform. Based on employees’ work performance,
promotion assessment is conducted by their supervisors
annually, after employees have worked for a full year. Then it is
reviewed by the administrative department and finally decided
by the Chairman of the Board. Employees promoted have to be
on probation until formally promoted after approval. For talented
employees with outstanding work performance, supervisors
can apply provisional assessment and recommend frog-leaping
promotion.

32 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FIAREM ABKOT 2RI ARE - LEY
HemTHARENGEXE  ERBREET
ERE - R BREREEHFREIRMIES -

BRAEMITRLE EMEREEREBRE
Bl - EHEREEERZEREM TIFER o it
o BEPIEE - MERLRE - AIFEREE
BRRFTE  BAFHHBH - HIESENZIL
B o

RAREEENTE  AREBRRETEEES
SR ﬁ&ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%hﬁk%ﬁ@ I % BF
H2HEBEERBRIE) - AERELERERR
' HREAR EW%%@ TR AEEREE

KEEMELGEBRERAEI -

ARBERNRREREIERNERTS - BB
ABUR—F1& - SFETRETHME o ZEHE
WEBRBAKE  BEEEE %% THEE
o UREAERSIRRE - BEEANESR
NHEEXLBYREF L@éT%ﬁEﬁ%ﬂ
MR TIERRRENEFAT - EEEEAR
HITWAE - TR RS THBURE
# o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE - dERERHKE

OPERATING PRACTICES

Product and Service Quality

Products of the Group include jewellery as well as software
products and services for corporates. Health and safety
risks involved in these products and services are relatively
insignificant. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
related to product quality, advertising, product labelling and
customer privacy, including the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China and the Law of the People's Republic of
China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. During
the year, there was no occurrence of any monetary or non-
monetary sanctions due to non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Regarding the business of jewellery products, the Group has
set up ‘Regulation on Goods Management' for strict control
of quality and quantity of products available for sale. Every
product is checked and accepted by shop managers after
checking quality and quantity of products, appropriate matching
of product labels and the relevant certificates. Meanwhile, as a
responsible business operator, we provide a series of after-sale
services including product repairing. Follow-up work is well-
managed when repairing of products is under processing to
ensure repair is completed in-time and the damage or defect is
addressed satisfactorily.

We highly value quality of customer services to satisfy
customers’ needs to the best of our ability. Upon receipt of any
complaint, we conduct inspection on problems offer remedies
as required in accordance with relevant regulations of the
Company. If customers show dissatisfaction towards results
of the investigation and our remedies, responsible staff are
required to report the incident to their supervisors for further
measures in order to satisfy customers.
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Ethics, local laws and regulations

The Group upholds the highest standards of integrity in its
operations. Adhering to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in
Hong Kong and the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of
China, any corruption behavior is prohibited. Whistleblowing
mechanisms are established to encourage employees to
report any suspected case of bribery or illegal behavior to the
management. Follow-up investigations are promptly conducted.
Cases of corruption, if any, are immediately handed over to the
authorities. Personnel involved may face disciplinary actions,
including dismissal. Requirements on employees’ conduct have
been articulated through the employee handbook.

During the year, there were no reported cases of violation of
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group's operations do not involve production activities that
have significant impacts on the environment. Nevertheless, we
aware of the environmental impacts it may generate when we
conduct business.
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 HEREREE

1= 15

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (“GHG Emission”)

Our major part of air emissions is generated from the vehicles
owned and operated by the Group. Fuel consumption of our
vehicles contributed to direct greenhouse gas emissions of 9.30
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e).

The Group’s GHG emissions

BEREBHER(BERBIHER])
BPMEIEERENBEAEERFLERNES
BWEL - BIEEAMEDEREEL. 30 — Al
MEENEEREREBIN

REERERIETN
Indicator Unit 2020
B B —EoEH
Direct GHG emission — petrol consumption ~ EEAZEREHHR— tCO,e M-&E(tIRE= 8.96
/‘L/EE/E%%
Energy indirect GHG emission — Electricity M RAZEREEE tCOe B_AtiRE=E 3.65
consumption B—E=HME
Other indirect GHG emission HihEEAEREHNR tCOe M_E/tiE = 2.00
Total GHG emission R E RSN tCOe ME— A LixE 2 14.61
Environmental Laws BRRZEH

The Group strictly complies with relevant environmental laws
and regulations in China such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Air Pollution and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution of Solid
Waste.

AEEERETPEARNRRARER - 81
(PEARKMBREFRELR)  (FEARLME
RRIFRIAE) RSP EARKMBE E B REY))S
RIREBHAERD ©
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RS- #tEREREE

Packaging Material Consumption

The Group is conscious of the impacts of packaging materials
to the environment. Consumption of packaging materials
are closely monitored. Regular review of product packaging
material and designs are performed to minimise impacts to
the environment due to overpackaging and non-biodegradable
materials.

GE2E SR e
AEEMIOEMHHBENTE  BIESS
EIEDER - AR EER RN RRE
DA RN RSB 2 S R R T A DR AR
MERN B E -

Unit 2020 2019
B —E-BH —E—NF
Packaging material B2
— Gift boxes —2a PcsE 3,540 5,440
— Shopping bags —EEYR Pcs{ 4,200 6,340
SOCIAL COMMUNITY HE
Contribution to the Community E e
The Group contribute to the communities where its businesses ANEBERBAEWERREELEKS  BHRAR

are located by offering job opportunities to local residents.
Employees are encouraged to get involved in community and
charity activities, spreading compassion within the Group and
in the community as well as supporting the society's well-being
and development.
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RiE - dERERHKE

PUBLIC HEALTH (EPIDEMIC)

Health of Employees

The Group's investments in Human Capital expose to impacts
of epidemic and its risks to health of the employees and their
families. Employees are considered as valuable assets to the
Group. The Group determines to provide hygienic working
environment and take the best measures to protect the
employees from health issues brought by epidemic. For the
current coronavirus epidemic, workspaces in Hong Kong and
China are regularly disinfected and staff are allowed flexibility
to work at home in order to minimise the threats to employee’s
health at and on their way to their workspace. The management
has also provided adequate face masks and hand sanitiser for
the employees.

Fight against epidemic

As a stakeholder of the society, the Group will follow the
government measures, both mandatory and voluntary, for
fighting against epidemic. The Group understands that
government regulations are applying to public or an specific
industry at large and therefore, these regulations are usually
less effective and responsive to the latest development of the
epidemic. The Group will act against the epidemic proactively
according to its own conditions and resources available.

Employment

The disruptions of epidemic to businesses can be extensive but
the Group believes that maintaining jobs are crucial to recovery
of an economy. While profitability is the prime objective, the
Group recognises its social responsibilities under epidemic and
will keep employment as long as resources of the Group allow.

DNHEE ES)
BERE

AEEHANBERANREABRBENTZERERIT
REBRERENRESTRNRER - AEERRE
ERBEEEE - ARERERMELEN TIERR

EERBEENEERRERE @ 2RRBEERNR
FERETE - MENERESRE - FERF
B TEEREMETES  BTUEMERT

1F - LRIEETES RS EMR2ERR
E.ﬁ@ﬁ%;ﬁﬁﬁ%’]DE&ﬁaﬁE?ﬂﬂmﬁ?ﬂE

e
ERL SN mBREE - A& B E 18T R
KA RRfERAHIRE - ARBEHRABRFNRE

ERARARLBERETE - Bt - ZERTE
BEHRBOSRMERBARER N REEERIE
AEERBRES FGELABER  BEREIR

B e
kS
RIEHEBWTEARRARE - EAKERER

BIFEUHEEEREHER - BERIEG
REZER  BAKERRIEERBTIOMLE
B YHBNEAKEERAFEEANER
o,

Reported cases of work TEGFREER 2020 2019
space health and safety T2 ERETFT —E-EE —E—NE
COVID-19 Eiip R E= - _
Accidents £l - -
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 168.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the “Financial Summary"”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 5, page 6 and pages 7 to 12 respectively of
this Annual Report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 61 to 62 and note 29
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had no
distributable reserve.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. NA Xin

Ms. ZHAO XiaXia

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

AR B f#
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DIRECTORS (cContinued)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Chen Yin, Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Zhao Xia
Xia will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 48 to 50.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group’'s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Details of the connected and related party transactions are set
out in the Directors’ Report and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Notwithstanding the above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or the Director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

40 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020

=3¢ )

RIBARF 2 ARIARESAR - REEBRFASF
REL EREEZ=DZ—ER(IMEFA
A== B ARZKEAEBTIR=0
Z—ZEBR)ARESR  ETWAXEEMR
E o EFARSBFRE-RX -RELLE A
RELENHEBELT BN EERFBF RS £
WESE  NENEERBEREEEEL -

EEREREEAERE

EENERERAERESHNFEISEL0E -

EECZRBEN

BREERRAFASLEIEECESHER
ARRHEEFAMBARITER —FANZNEE
B ORERERIN M AAIL L Z RERREEL o

E=HM
FHNEZE@AERBEARELEXE AARR
KA ELBTIHED @ A AEEEERSRE
BB PA A R S 2R A8 -

BEENRS - THHEN 2=

FER S RIS FRHNEFT WS LR
BMBHRAMEI2 -

BEALFT EFXEFTZHEETHERAR
AREERMBRRMAILEBAREER - M
RERKFRAEMAKEDABRIEARS ~ &
BRAENTERRERBEEEA A -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"), or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the GEM Listing

Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

EERFEITHRAERKRAD - HER
DRESFTRHEEZEERKXE

R-FB-_FF+-_A=+t—H  REARXAER
EH R AEGE(TE 7 RGP ) £3521&H
EFEZERMAE - RIRBEBLZAGEM TR
AR TARBI R 2B - ARAREERTT
AR AN R B R EARRAE 2 By ~ HRRER
SEFTFRAEZEDIARIT ¢

RAQXFBREECI10BTEBR TR

FEEBEREA
Percentage of
the issued
Held by share capital
Beneficial Held controlled of the
Owner by family corporation Total Company
EEARERT
Name of Director ESi3 ERBEEA HREEE HEZEAREE ok ENEp
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HETEE 36,726,000 - 804,157,697 840,883,697 43.17%
(Note 1)
(Hst1)
Ms. LI Xia FELT - - 804,157,697 804,157,697 41.29%
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Mr. CHEN Yin REfE - - 149,455,740 149,455,740 7.67%
(Note 2)
(Hi22)

TECTFFR HEERERERAR 41



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2)

These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited
and 75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd, a company
incorporated in the PRC which is held as to 80% by Mr.
Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed
to be interested in 804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent
Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his shareholding in Shenzhen Yihua
Jewellery Co., Ltd. Ocean Expert Investments Limited is a
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
is wholly owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be
interested in 804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited
by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia
through her shareholding in Ocean Expert Investments Limited
and through her acting as the sole director of Sino Eminent
Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders WR-_E-—F&#+—-H=+—H ' AL F)ER
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the FEAFRKHEIEEFIEICKEEFEZFEIRKRZMET
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the & @ TF|RE D HERQBRAR T D EITRAKR
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued FEEAHBEEZR AR °

share capital of the Company.

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued share capital
Capacity in which interests are ordinary of the
Name of party Notes held shares held Company
& FIBERT  BADRERT
BHEEREE8 st HHERERN S5 EEREE JRAH 2 E
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 840,883,697 43.17%
and Beneficial owner
HRTEE Mizt1  REEHARZERREREEA
Sino Eminent Limited Note 1 Beneficial owner 804,157,697 41.29%
ZERAR AT Mizt1  EBEmBEREA
Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
ATMEEREEHRHERDE] M1 REEHIDRZER
Ocean Expert Investments Limited Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
BRREARLA Mizt1  RREHIAR L #a
Ms. LI Xia Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
FERT Mizt1  RREHIAR L #Ew
Flourish Zone Limited Note 2 Beneficial owner 149,455,740 7.67%
BEEERAR M2  EmBEBA
Mr. CHEN Yin Note 2 Interest in a controlled corporation 149,455,740 7.67%
BRELE Mzt2  RREHIAR L #a
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited Note 3 Interest in controlled corporations 143,233,151 7.35%
RINZEXARLA Mizt3  RREHIAR L #Ew

—E_TEEH
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Notes:

(1) Sino Eminent Limited is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert
Investments Limited and 75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery
Co., Ltd, a company incorporated in the PRC which is held
as to approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly,
Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed to be interested in 804,157,697
shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent
Limited being controlled by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his
shareholding in Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd. Ocean
Expert Investments Limited is a limited company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly owned by Ms.
Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be interested in 804,157,697
shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent
Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her shareholding
in Ocean Expert Investments Limited and through her acting as
the sole director of Sino Eminent Limited.

(2) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 149,455,740
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

3) CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in a total of 143,233,151
shares of the Company through its controlled companies.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 67% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 19% of the Group's turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 98% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 61% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporations a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or its associated corporation.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

BEROREZ2ZH

BREREXEEI FRARE - HNBAFH
HiRMEE B L EM R REES T B EBE
ARABISEAREEE Z RS ESFMESHE

BREXZKEBIXS

2020 2019

Name of counterparty Nature of transactions —ECEE —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

5T ER XEMUE THET TET

- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd Sales of gold and jewellery products - 53
(Note 1)

—MITEEREEHRNERAR HERSRAEEmM

(Hizt1)

Processing fee paid = 409

BENMIER

Note:

(1) Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd is a substantial shareholder
of the Company having interest of approximately 41.29% (2019:
41.29%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2020 and is owned as to approximately 80% by Mr.
Chong Yu Ping.

(1) FINTTHELEGHRGBERA G BEARALZ
FERRK R-F-FFF-—H=+—HEH
AKRBEIAI41.29% (ZF—F :41.29%) B &
TR A KRS - WA E-FIELEFFHAIB0% IRHE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is any permitted indemnity provision being in force
for the benefit of any directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or of its associated company (made
by the Company).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of independence
were received from each of the Company’s independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and all independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Zhao Xiaxia and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 13 to 25.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there is no
significant event occurring after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2021
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERENEEAEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 54)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has over
20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and investment
industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong has been
appointed as the general manager and executive Director of a
private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd* and from
2011 to present, he is the director and legal representative
of Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd, a company which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed under the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’
Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as an
executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on 17
February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 47)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggiu Investment Development Limited*, and was
appointed as executive vice president with her experience
and strength in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for
administration and human resource management, marketing
operations and brand promotion. At the same time, Ms. Li also
served as the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser
for Baidi Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent
results, which made her the veteran in the jewellery business.
Ms. Li graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic
of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration. Ms. Li has been an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

*  For identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEABER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 39)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America. Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director of the
Group since 3 July 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 45)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. NA Xin (Age 40)

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of I L2 % Tk
ZEHMAR AT (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd)*, a
company specialised in qualified jewellery trading business
from 2008 to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive
officer for Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch*
from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her Bachelor's
degree in English in the School of Humanities and Social
Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known as
the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia (Aged 41)

Ms. Zhao was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 July 2018. Ms. Zhao obtained a college diploma
of history education in Qingdao University* in 2000. She has
been serving as the assistant to the chairman and deputy
general manager of a PRC jewellery company for several
years, principally responsible for executive, management,
and coordination work. Ms. Zhao has ample experience in
marketing, exhibition and operation of jewellery bands.

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

Q Grant Thornton
2[5

To the members of Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 168,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Existence and valuation of inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.9,
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020,
the Group had inventories of
HK$61,554,000. Inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The Group's inventories mainly
comprised gold and jewellery
products which are subject
to risk of changes in market
value. In determining the net
realisable value, estimates and
judgements are applied by the
management in respect of the
economic condition, forecast
market price and marketability
of products.

We considered this as key audit
matter due to the significance
of inventories (representing
44% of total assets) and the
involvement of management
judgement and estimation
on the net realisable value of
inventories.
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How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to the existence
and valuation of inventories included
the following:

o attended physical inventory counts
at year end and performed “two-
way" count on a sample basis;

° inspected the external laboratory
reports on the authenticity of
gold and jewellery products for
the samples selected by us;

o obtained an understanding of
management’s process for
identification of slow-moving
inventories and estimation
of net realisable value of
inventories;

° reviewed and analysed the
ageing of inventories and
their associated provisions;
and

o reviewed and evaluated the net
realisable value of inventories,
with reference to subsequent
sales information and external
market price data, on a sample
basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2020 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. \We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determined those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

31 March 2021

Kwok Siu Kwan, Sylvia
Practising Certificate No.: P0O6616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeBREREMEEHKER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 T T FHIT
Revenue WA 5 49,211 98,492
Other income H AUz 7 4,179 699
Change in inventories FEEE) 6,528 (9,897)
Purchase of goods BEER (12,856) (20,574)
Professional fees HEEH (21,563) (18,075)
Employee benefits expense EERFFAX 38 (22,477) (42,735)
Depreciation e 9 (1,658) (2,045)
Expected credit loss (“ECL") FEULE 5 B 3K I L At B UK
allowance on trade and other I%Z%EEEEEESE(HE%
receivables ERBRDEE (153) 9)
Other expenses HihfA 9 (8,241) (18,089)
Write-down of inventories to net  WURFE S ZE A &3 %E
realisable value 9 (2,181) -
Finance costs % ER 10 (32) (63)
Share of results of a joint venture JE(h—EA L hE 7 ¥4 - (2,510)
Loss on remeasurement of ENETELANBFAENEZEDR
previously held equity interest in  ¥#Ezs v B8
a joint venture 33 - (147)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries H&MIE R a2 Wk F58 34 - 308
Loss before income tax IR SR AIEE 9 (9,243) (14,635)
Income tax expense FrigBif X 11 (81) (79)
Loss for the year FREE (9,324) (14,714)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEEKZE (BIX)
(expense) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified HEETNEEH S IEEIEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAEMEER
through other comprehensive W (MR Ak BERA
income (“FVOCI"”) - net Hiv 2wl )& rt
movement in fair value BE- R EBEHMEEY
reserve (non-recycling) ghEEE (] EEE) 4,509 6,667
Items that will be reclassified HiE BB P EE B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation &GN ERK B SRR
of financial statements of & H Uz (E5i8)
foreign operations 3,383 (765)
Release of exchange reserve P E BB A 5 R
upon disposal of a subsidiary B SN FE 1B = 72
Other comprehensive income for &R E 2 @K EH
the year 7,892 5,974
Total comprehensive expense for FREHEE XA
the year (1,432) (8,740)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeEalkEMEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2020 2019
= —E—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
bz FE T FHAT
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{EFREE :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ 2= DN (8,717) (14,680)
Non-controlling interests eI e (607) (34)
(9,324) (14,714)
Total comprehensive expense B2 EE AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRABEA A (825) (8,706)
Non-controlling interests Iy = (607) (34)
(1,432) (8,740)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted HAN#E 12 (HKO0.45 centsi&1lll) (HKO0.78 cents/&1ll)

The notes on pages 65 to 168 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

2B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B AR R

as at 31 December 2020 R —ZFE —ZFF 1 —A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-nEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(= FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 14 2,384 3,313
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,326 644
Other financial assets Hih R & E 17 23,102 18,593
26,812 22,550
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ER | 18 61,554 55,026
Contract assets EHEE 19 3,460 6,141
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR R 20 6,144 5,323
Other receivables, deposits and Ha e EUE - e RFER
prepayments Hig 21 19,385 26,170
Cash and bank balances He KIRTTIER 22 23,524 25,994
114,067 118,654
Current liabilities REBBE
Trade payables ERE SRR 23 2,030 1,076
Other payables and accrued charges EfhfEf T IE NTFEIRE B 24 6,335 6,051
Contract liabilities AHEE 19 7,483 6,763
Amounts due to directors JENEE A 25 8,088 9,682
Lease liabilities HEeEaE 26 486 461
Tax payable FERTREIR 101 58
24,523 24,091
Net current assets RBEEFE 89,544 94,563
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERAHERE 116,356 117,113
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 872 197
Net assets EEFE 115,484 116,916

TECTFFR HEERERERAR 59



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

as at 31 December 2020 R=—ZF—FF+—-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-nF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
EQUITY B RE
Share capital A% A 27 194,769 194,769
Reserves (e (77,322) (76,497)
Equity attributable to owners of  Zx2\ B #EHA A FE{L R 1E
the Company 117,447 118,272
Non-controlling interests IR ER (1,963) (1,356)
Total equity IRrELEEE 115,484 116,916
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HEYF
Director = Director E5F

The notes on pages 65 to 168 are an integral part of these $65%=168E MM A I E4HRAMEHREN—
consolidated financial statements. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRBAEL
Fair value Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital ~ reserve [non-  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium* reserve* reserve*  recycling)* [osses* Total interests equity
DrEERE
Bx RiRE*  ERET  AdBR  (FTEE; ZiER B GikEs  RECE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Titn ThT Titn Thr Titn Thr AL Tt Thn
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-BHER 178,269 217,968 (6,361) (276) 1196 (91626 109900 (1322 108578
Loss for the year EngR - - - - - (14,680) (14,680) (34 (14,714
Other comprehensive (expensell ~ EH2E(F) /i :
income:
- Exchange loss on tenslion of ~ ~EENERHEERAN
financil statements of foreign EEE
operations - - (765) - - - (765 - (765)
- Release of exchange reserve -hE- BN ARERE
upon disposal of a subsidiary ikt - - 1 = = = 1 - n
- Financial assets at FVOC-net — ~BAABEFALH2ER
movement in fair value reserve BNEREE-DAEH
(non-ecycling) EREDRE(ATIE) - - - - £,667 - 6,667 - 6,667
Tota comprehensive expensell SRR/ HikE
income for the year = = (693) = 6,667 (14,680) (8,706) (34 (8,740)
Issue of ordinary sheres by Placing ~ BEREETTERR(HE70)
[note 27(i) 16,500 825 - - - - 17325 - 17,325
Transaction costs atirbutable to issue  EERERRERNTHER
of ordinary shares by Placing (hxa7ti)
note 27 (i) - (261) S = = = (261) = (261)
Acquisiton of additional interests of a  WE-TIBAT ENER
subsiciary (note 33) (Hit) - - - 1 5 : 14 = 14
Balance at 31 December 2019 HE-NFtZA=1-R
i 194,769 218,532 (7,04) (262) 18593 306,306) 118272 (1,356) 116,916
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARL
Fair value Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital ~reserve (non-  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium* reserve* reserve*  recycling)* losses* Total interests equity
NMEERRE
Bx  RARE  JEEE  EARE  (FUEE)  EiER I 3 hEsE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000. HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TH1 TH7L TH1 Th7L THL T#7 THL T#1 THL
Balance at 1 January 2020 NE-FF-A-H 194,769 218532 (7,054) (262) 18593 (306,306) 118212 (1,356) 116,916
Loss for the year EmEe = = - - - (8,717) (8,717) (607) (9,324)
Other comprehensive income: EfRENE
- Bxchange gain on tranlation o~ ~BEENEREKRRNE
financial statements of foreign s
operations - - 3383 - - - 3383 - 3383
- Financial assets at VOCI -t~ —RAAEEFARB2EN
movement in fair value reserve GHEREE-LABE
fnonvecycling HREDEE(TTEE) - - - - 4509 - 4509 - 4509
Total comprehensive income/ ERREl /() s
(ewpense) for the year - - 3383 - 4509 (8717) (825) (607) (1432)
Balance at 31 December 2020 WoEZBETZR=T-RH
&8 14769 218532 (3471) (262) B2 (36508 144 (1963 115484

*

The notes on pages 65 to 168 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

These reserves accounts comprise the Group's deficit of
reserves of HK$77,322,000 (2019: HK$76,497,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBReRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
I FHET THIT
Cash flows from operating REREIH2HEARE
activities
Loss before income tax &R 1555 B Es1E (9,243) (14,635)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation e 1,658 2,045
Net loss on written off/disposal of  #fi$l HEWE - BKE K&
property, plant and equipment R FEE 252 596
Interest income B U #s (21) (51)
ECL on trade and other receivables JEURE 5 BR 2 2 H fib fE LR
HIBZBHREEER 153 9
Interest expense R EFX 32 53
Write down of inventories to WO F&E 2 2IREE
net realisable value, net 2,181 -
Written off of contract assets SREEM - 525
Loss on remeasurement of EMFTEANBANEGE
previously held equity interest EERZEE
in a joint venture B3 - 147
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNEA R 2 Uz F5E 34 - (308)
Share of results of a joint venture  JEE—EIAE ¥ 2E - 2,510
Exchange (gain)/loss PE X (Uas) /518 (1,874) 603
Operating loss before working BEERHIRI KL BE
capital changes (6,862) (8,506)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEOEM, B (5,115) 9,007
Decrease/(Increase) in contract AHBERLD, (M)
assets 2,515 (3,749)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade FEURE SRR (38 00), R
receivables 2 (642) 995
Decrease/(Increase) in other HipEWFOE ~ iHe &Ta
receivables, deposits and RIS (38 h0)
prepayments 5,774 (2,760)
Increase in trade payables FERTE S BR8N 842 523
Increase/(Decrease) in other HEMENZIBERERER
payables and accrued charges #2hn GRid) 45 (5,753)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract AHBEEM CRd)
liabilities 635 (1,412)
Cash used in operations R IRENE 4 (2,808) (11,655)
Income tax paid ETATSEL (38) (67)
Net cash used in operating activities #¥4 ,ZE)E)fH o H 5 F58 (2,846) (11,722)

—EoTEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEBRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2020 2019
—ECEH —hE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
F5E FHET T
Cash flows from investing REREEFHZ2HEESHRE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  WENMEKE
equipment (526) (206)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - MENMEKEZ
plant and equipment PS5k 8 128 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEMB AR ZFTEHIA
subsidiaries 34 100 2,480
Decrease in other receivables H b e W FRIE R 1,781 6,652
Net cash inflow on deemed RIEWE—RHf B AR 2R
acquisition of a subsidiary EMAFE 33 - 120
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEMBATIREL RS
of subsidiaries T R 34 - (3,288)
Interest received B UF & 21 51
Net cash generated from investing & EBES 2 H o F5E
activities 1,504 5,809
Cash flows from financing REBEFHZ2ESRE
activities
Net proceeds from issuance of BB ERITERIRAIER
ordinary shares by Placing IE 558 27 - 17,064
Payment of lease liabilities XHHEEBE 36 (581) (948)
Repayments to directors MESEERE (1,594) (11,103)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  B&EEZE (&) E4L7HE
financing activities TFEE (2,175) 5,013
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREEEW 2R
equivalents B (3,517) (900)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzRe&EkREeE
1 January BY 25,994 27,131
Effect on foreign exchange rate [EREE) &
changes 1,047 (237)
Cash and cash equivalents at31 R+=-A=+—-HZzHELR
December, represented by cash BEE&ZEY - HEERE
and bank balances TER 23,524 25,994
The notes on pages 65 to 168 are an integral part of these 652 168E KM BN S5 A MIEHEN —

consolidated financial statements. ZB1n
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the development, sale and
implementation of enterprise software, provision of
systems integration and professional services, design
and sales of gold and jewellery products and investment
holding. The Group's operations are based in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 31 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group's financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for financial assets at FVOCI which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation 22 mEZEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and
others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 #HEZEEE)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to accumulated losses).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost includes directly
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition—
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value on the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree, the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as bargain purchase gain.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate or joint venture recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group's share
of the associate or joint venture's profit or loss in
the period in which the investment acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate or joint venture is carried at cost and
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the associate or joint venture's
net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). The profit or loss for the year includes
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associate or joint venture for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate or joint venture recognised
for the year. The Group's other comprehensive
income for the year includes its share of the
associate or joint venture's other comprehensive
income for the year.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture. If the retained interest in that former
associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture;
and (ii) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued,
is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would have been required if the
associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHEHMEe)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 MEBRE
The consolidated financial statements are presented ZEEEBHmRERABT(ABEIT])

in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e.
only translated using the exchange rates at the
transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2.

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognised at acquisition cost, including any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Group’'s management. They are subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

20% to 33"/:%
10% to 50%
20% to 25%
25% to 30%

Leasehold improvements
Computer and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Estimates of residual value and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

amortised cost;
- FVTPL; or

= FVOCI.

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity's business model for managing
the financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within finance costs or other income,
except for ECL allowances of trade and other
receivables which is presented as a separate item
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 27 SE®@MIAE)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if

the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the financial
assets and collect its contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and
bank balances and trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable) fall into this category of financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in “fair value reserve (non-recycling)” in equity.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective.

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss in “fair value reserve (non-recycling)” will not
be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established. Dividends are included in “Other
income” in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHERHEE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 27 E£WMIEE)
Financial liabilities 2HEAE
Classification and measurement of financial EHEEENSERGE
liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and AEBCHEERIEENE SRR
other payables, amounts due to directors and MEMERRIE -« EAEEHER
lease liabilities. HEEE -
Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) TRBEEARBE(HEEAGER
are initially measured at fair value, and, where SN R (B R ) BE R 5 AR T LA
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless B)VFE  RIFEXEEEES
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL. BEBERAREBEFABRITE -
Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than Hiz  emaE(HEBERIMNE
lease liabilities) are measured at amortised cost RERF EEIREHEKATE @
using the effective interest method except for EERALBETABRSNTET
derivatives and financial liabilities designated at ARcmBaERI BEEEZA
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair HEBEITE WS EERNIERRE
value with gains or losses recognised in profit or R e
loss.
All interest-related charges are included within FIBENEMHMENE RIS ANBE
finance costs. AR -
Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out HEBEN ST EERENIFE2.13 -
in note 2.13.
Trade and other payables and amounts due to JEIT B 5 BR 50 % B b JE 1+ 50 LA K
directors ENEFFE
These are recognised initially at their fair value and ZEHEVNTEAREBEEER
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using ME12 (BB R R RIS SE Rk ANt
the effective interest method. s o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL -
the "ECL model”. Instruments within the scope
included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and
contract assets recognised and measured under
HKFRS 15 and some financial guarantee contracts
(for the issuer) that are not measured at FVTPL.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage
1") and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL" are recognised for
the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEEHBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets and 28 ZRIEERGHNEEZRESE)
contract assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets JEWE ZIRAR &K EE
For trade receivables and contract assets, the MERE ZFERNEHEEMS
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating AEBERAG A EEREER
ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on BB RE2HBEPERNRSTELR
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are EEEEEIAEERE - 283 %
the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, Rl B = O HA A (E {n] B3 R 2545 AT e
considering the potential for default at any point MWENEH  EEBEASNES
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating MEMTERZEZRE - RFTEEHEER
the ECL, the Group has established a provision EIERE - AEBRE BERRE - %
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss EREDENEBRAEEBHELSR K
experience and external indicators, adjusted for GNEBFEFRE - WL EIS A RKEIRE
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and MR EAIEEREZELAE -

the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and BrERHEEEE  BRESE
contract assets have been grouped based on BANENEBECRARMNEERR
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past FREERaAREETOE - 0B
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work EHAMAKRETEIESRH - 828
in progress and have substantially the same risk AEASAONERESEREBR
characteristics as the trade receivables for the HHERMERSE - Aitt - AEE
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore REERWE SRFNTEREZEREIE
concluded that the ECL rates for trade receivables REASHNEENEBERNESIERD
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates B -

for the contract assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost LR AT E A M 2 & E
The Group measures the loss allowance for other AeEBIZ12@ AEHEEEFE
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when SHEMBYFIENEERE - KRk
there has been a significant increase in credit risk EERR BV FHERARE KIE
since initial recognition, the Group recognises Tt AIRNERERXRITEHEEE
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime B R AEERARIESREE
ECL should be recognised is based on significant BIETER BV P HERARIE AR
increase in the likelihood or risk of default KA RE SRR B B RIB A ©

occurring since initial recognition.
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2.

82

—EFf A=

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the
risk of default occurring on the financial assets
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); or (ii) the financial assets is 90
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost are set out in
note 37.4.
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e ISR M EE
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2.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and are determined using the
first in, first out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities 211 EHEERGHER

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2.16) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2.8 and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 2.7).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2.16).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.7).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instruments and the payments
that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to
a third party for assessing the obligations. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out
in note 2.8 and the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange
for consideration’. To apply this definition, the
Group assesses whether the contract meets three

key evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made

available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined

scope of the contract; and

° the Group has the right to direct the use
of the identified asset throughout the
period of use. The Group assess whether
it has the right to direct "how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the

period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-

alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is
made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group,
an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease, and
any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term unless the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for
impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payment of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for lease payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability,
the payments in relation to these leases are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 month
or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Share capital is recognised at the amount of
consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FTESTHRBE®)

2.16 WAMER
AEBERBRALELSRANETE T E

2.16 Revenue recognition

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the

Group follows a b-step process: S ONE

1. Identifying the contract with a customer i BERFEH

2. Identifying the performance obligations 2. HR BB

3. Determining the transaction price 3. BEERSER

4. Allocating the transaction price to the 4. ERROBTES RS ES

performance obligations
5. B/ BERANEENETmE
RBUA

5y Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

EEBERT @ GHNERZERR
BHEENERBLIEENRES
HEXNEE - BN ZERTE
ERRE =7 WA ERIFOR -

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract
is allocated amongst the various performance
obligations based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices. The transaction price for a contract
excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

B () AEBERBBIARER
KRBERGEEFPMETENER
£ - BIR — Bk B R e — B

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the

promised goods or services to its customers.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Jewellery Products

MEERBIA -

BRAAREEBARE MU ATERER

REVE— PREIRRGINT ¢

T B A rip

HETERHEERS MNKE
EmABRATIE HEEAREE
HEEMNEHIEEBRGEER
B T IARERR o

(a) Revenue from the sales of gold and jewellery (a)
products for a fixed fee is recognised when
or as the Group transfers control of the
assets to the customer.

(b) Franchise income is recognised on an (b) B mMBEE WA RNIMEBEE

accrual basis over the terms of the relevant N5 BAR I pE =T AL
franchise agreements. FER o
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e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHEHMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued) 216 WARBRE)

IT Products and Services B RHE Ean R IR

(a) Enterprise software products (a) PEEMFED
Revenue from the development of customised RIS = N =T
software is recognised over time as the R ZEEAAEENED
Group’s performance creates and enhances Bl R IR R HIE
an asset that the customer controls. The EeoTREKRBARERED
progress towards complete satisfaction of a EETRE A LR E - BB
performance obligation is measured based @E%ﬁi?@%ﬁiﬁiﬁé%@
on output method, which is to recognise FHREEE  HEEL
revenue on the basis of direct measurements AR E’\]Hlﬁ‘%{ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬂﬂl
of the value of the services transferred to A - B ERERR RS
the customer to date relative to the services B pA 8858 & R ok AR S 2 ) 4
promised under the contract, that best depict FEREAER
the Group's performance in transferring control
of goods or services.
When the outcome of the contract cannot BEAANERELSEBE
be reasonably measured, revenue is B EREHT TRESE
recognised only to the extent of contract EE.:.,@EX$EEM\H§U\ °
costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.
If at any time the costs to complete the WP B AT TR AL
contract are estimated to exceed the ﬁ$ﬁiﬁ/—\f\’7ﬂﬁ$ﬁ{ﬁi\
remaining amount of the consideration BB EBEE A TERSE
under the contract, a provision is 375)?1':@.: W o
recognised in accordance with HKAS 37.
Warranties associated with enterprise HEEEHELABENER
software products cannot be purchased TEEBEE  HEBEY
separately and are served as an assurance Fﬁ%%ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ(ﬁﬂ
that the products sold comply with agreed- REFEAIER)NRE
upon specifications (i.e. assurance- [l ZK%@@T);?E/%E-
type warranties). Accordingly, the Group AIZE375% ## - KABE
accounts for warranties in accordance with KalREE IBEERAR -

HKAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEEH#SE@R)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued) 216 WARBRE)
IT Products and Services (Continued) BRI E dn R AR ()
(a) Enterprise software products (Continued) (a)  EEEMERE)
Maintenance service income is recognised 1R RIS R A B 4R R 1R 1
on a straight-line basis over the terms of BREIRTE S L HRIER

the relevant maintenance service contracts.

(b)  System integration (b)  REEAL
Revenue from sale of complementary hardware HERETRE 4 E m REE
and software products and software licences REFAZTORATYE B
is recognised when or as the Group transfers INER B G A B A B I R e S
control of the assets to the customer. MEREREETLAREDR o

() Professional services ()  EXRH
Professional services income are recognised BERBE 2 WRPNIREHRS
in the period when the services are provided. BARSIAERR o

Others At

(a) Consultancy and management fee income (a) BREBEMYIE - BERRSA
in respect of technical support, consultancy REEREZERLEERES
services and management services are WS ARISIR L HARE R -
recognised in the period when services are
rendered.

(b)  Interest income is recognised on a time (b) R BUZFER A BRI REE
proportion basis using the effective interest R F B I ELE TSR AU R
method. For financial assets measured at EEREMTHEEKAGTE
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, ZEMEEMmMS HEER
the effective interest rate is applied to the HBEEAERFE -

gross carrying amount of the asset.
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2.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “other income"” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment
testing:

o Property, plant and equipment;
° Right-of-use assets; and
o The Company's interests in subsidiaries.

They are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset's carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 FEMEEREE)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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2.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, Taiwan, Malaysia and Singapore
are required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHEHMEe)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs 220 HERHZA&
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred. EERANNREERLE -

2.21 Accounting for income taxes 221 FiEBizEgsAE
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred FriS i e 5 BN B R IR AERL IR ©
tax.
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities BEFISFREEN, SAaBRER
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, HisimE 2 mAAF(BER 25k B 5k
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior AIZM) > FTRBERENHRZE
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting FHREBMBEERZRE  TIRE
date. They are calculated according to the tax FRERET A - A Y
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods ZERRERB AT E o B
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit HMIBEENBEBE ARSI A
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or BHRAOMERY -

liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability BEMBIVIENRERBEREELE
method on temporary differences at the end BRUBHRZEAEEEZREZ
of the reporting period between the carrying BHENERZHBUAEELTE - B
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial RSB E—MRTLPTE FE R SRS
statements and their respective tax bases. EHEERAR BEEMRBEET
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised MATER N ERFERE - P 4EER
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax TH &5 18 DA N H b R 38 F R 7% 1 BR
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary R AR B ERB A (B
differences, tax losses available to be carried BRI AESRBERZ% ) oy Aan
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to HERERE  AERBEESBLE
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, ERAMGERIKEZIBRAR -

including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

2.

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

2.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
sales of products including enterprise
software products, systems integration and
professional services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHEHMEe)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties 223 RAEER
For the purposes of these consolidated financial MZESAUMBHRERMS @ HETE
statements, a party is considered to be related to LATER » AT AL RIIE BER
the Group if: SEERE -
(a)  the party is a person, or a close member of (a) (WFELATER  BIZAL

that person’s family and if that person: sz AL 2 EFHKREK 8 &

REE AR -

(i) has control or joint control over the (i) 7 B L R HI AR
Group; & :
(ii) has significant influence over the (ii) HAEBBEEAFE
Group; or VA=
(i) is a member of the key management iy AXEENIANEBRE
personnel of the Group or of a ARAITEBEEX
parent of the Group. 8 o
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the (b) WWEA THEA &S - BNi%
following conditions applies: EREHEAEB AR
(i) the entity and the Group are members (i) ZELEEAEERBRE
of the same group. —SKEZKERTA] °
(i) one entity is an associate or joint (i) —ERRS BB
venture of the other entity (or B NARA B
an associate or joint venture of a (HEZ—EBRBAEKE
member of a group of which the RAIZEBEETKE
other entity is a member). UNEIWA  /NCT A=
BE) o
(i) the entity and the Group are joint (i) ZEBEEEAEERDSHA
ventures of the same third party. R—F=HA2E201
% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(viil  a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material ”

The amendments clarify the definition of material and
state that “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
the decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity”. Materiality depends on nature
or magnitude of information or both.

BRANFTR] M R AR IERT B R T T

HEA

R-ZB-ZEF-A-HIEKFAKZ
FEMBERZHATALREEBTER
B RS 2R

RAFE AEBEERXEANATHEES
FHED AR - EAKENZEHENE
ARAEER T _TF—A—HHAKBZ
FEHRNGAMBHRR 2 EEFTREM
BEZER -

BEREMBREERFEINR
&3]

BEREMBRELENFN - B W FRER
RO EREFRERS HE
BREEMETHREFT

EAGHEAZIRLELE EAUZER
FHERIFESE 2 B FT

RBEER

BR S AR E S - BRI RRIERT 2 &
BB R EEEAHE ATz %
RRBBRANRER 2T ALEEX

S
FE o

BB B ERE 1 REE ST ERIFESH
ZIEFT[EX L2 EZ% ]

ZEFERIRBEANMENEE - WAk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. HRAHFLKRLEFTEBIE

HKFRSs (Continued) HER| )

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for R-CE-_ZEF-F—HREZBEBZ

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January FEHBERZHITLREEITER

2020 (Continued) M| EER (&)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of BB FFERIE 15 e BB AR FE 85t

Material” (Continued) BT EE M T (&)

The amendments also: ZEERTIN -

o introduce the concept of obscuring information o REEEB MRS ABRERTE
when considering materiality and provide some LA - WERGIEHAR e e By E
examples of circumstances that may result in RNEREMTIEHIBMN

material information being obscured;

. clarify that materiality assessment will need . BBEEAMNEINAEZ RE RN
to take into account how primary users could TETRHAAEBEEHeERTE R
reasonably be expected to be influenced in making Bleyf | nnelRafesxE
economic decisions by replacing the threshold RRPER 2 EERRERTE : &

“could influence"” with “could reasonably be
expected to influence” in the definition of
material; and

o clarify that materiality assessment will need
to take into account of information provided
to primary users of general purpose financial
statements (i.e. existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors that rely on general
purpose financial statements for much of the
financial information they need).

The application of these amendments has had no impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020

3y
HE df

b

BBERMF A INAE ERMMG
HERNETEZRAP (AL RHMAREF
FEVBERMKBEEAMBHRE
MBRAMNEERESE EHARE
L ERA) FTERENER -

W
]j\_lll|
>
i3
t
A
J e

A MBERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (continued)

BRA 5T 31 R A AT B 58 B A

EEER| (&)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs EAMEBRER 2EBUERELER

REETEESRAMBRIER - 5T
el MRERTBBY B HRE LK B M
BRAER - AWEBEANEERFRS -

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and

EAMBRSEAFITR  RRAORABETA

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

related amendments®
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-20202

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combination®

EEMBREEAR R RARER
1l

BENBREEAFOR - F MEERYE - SRE
BEEAEN - BB
MHREENLETS B
BHTEREEFERER
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Bl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

3.

106

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

4 Effective date not yet determined

5 Effective for business combination/common control

combination for which the acquisition/combination date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's
accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after
the effective date of the pronouncement. These new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a materia
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant estimation.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
were HK$2,384,000 (2019: HK$3,313,000) (note 14) and
HK$1,326,000 (2019: HK$644,000) (note 15) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

4.

108

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation of fair value of financial instruments

not traded in an active market

As at 31 December 2020, financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market including unlisted equity
investments and unlisted private equity fund were carried
at fair value of HK$22,638,000 (2019: HK$18,117,000)
and HK$464,000 (2019: HK$476,000) respectively. The
fair values are determined by using valuation techniques,
details of which are set out in note 37.6. This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with
how market participants would price the instrument. The
Group bases its assumptions on observable data as far
as possible but this is not always available. In that case
the Group uses the best information available. Estimated
fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date.

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits and contract
assets within the scope of ECL

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to
ECL (including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and contract assets) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period as set out in note 2.8. As
at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and contract
assets amounted to HK$6,144,000 (2019: HK$5,323,000)
(note 20), HK$13,106,000 (2019: HK$14,490,000) (note
21) and HK$3,460,000 (2019: HK$6,141,000) (note 19)
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits and contract
assets within the scope of ECL (Continued)

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and other items within the
scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of gold and jewellery
products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle.

Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of inventories was HK$61,554,000 (2019:
HK$55,026,000) (note 18).

BEESH AT RAE &)

FHFEBREER 2 BYWE S RN
REMEWNRIE - BEREWEEZ
B L5 ()

HERRKRSREANNTAY - ARAZE
KRBT ERBEEYHREEREIRER
HEEBRREENZBKE SRR REM
HEMEHERGHELEEHHM2EE
BE -

FEZTRRFE

BEeMURBEEMCFEZAERFELH
BEBRETOGEFEEREER - %
FRhFTIRBERITHAALHERREE
EmZELERMEL - YEREFEH
2 B R s T T R R Bk 1T 9B B P R
RzTE8MHBREAES -

EEBENESERBREGZSMHT - B
—E-EF+-A=+—H8 TFEZE
M 1{E 561,554,000 (=T — NLF:
55,026,000/ 7T) (FfzE18) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE 5. WA
The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 REEZ T EEBEZSHEA B HRERM
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group's FIHE c KAEBFENERZWALT ¢

revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2020 2019

—E-FBF —ZT-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&T TFHIT

Sales of gold and jewellery products =& RIKEESMIEE 9,876 35,082
Franchise income LI ON 18 249
Enterprise software products ESHAED 13,328 27,587
Systems integration REERK = 2,683
Professional services HERKE 25,989 32,891
49,211 98,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

5.

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WAw#E
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEEFEHAZWADSE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and ASEEATS E B R RS AR R E T
services over time and at a point in time in the following BN R iR RN B R Em MR E
major product and services lines and geographical market: 2 ONE
Sales of
gold and Enterprise
jewellery  Franchise software Systems  Professional
products income products integration services Total
ESRHE HIMEE
Em#E KA LEBHER AERR S5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL
2020 it St 23
Timing of revenue WARREE
recognition
At a point in time RS 9,876 - - - - 9,876
Over time b - 18 13,328 - 25,989 39,335
9,876 18 13,328 - 25,989 49,211
Geographical markets HEmE
Hong Kong B - - 6,526 - - 6,526
PRC and Taiwan MERAE 9,876 18 4,999 - 25,989 40,882
Southeast Asia g - - 1,803 - - 1,803
9,876 18 13,328 - 25,989 49,211

TECTFFR HEERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —

5.

112

—EFEf _H=1—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA@®
Sales of gold Enterprise
and jewellery Franchise software Systems  Professional
products income products  integration services Total
"HERGE  KOANEE
EmHE WA CER4ER FRER EXRE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAT TAT TAT TAT THET
2019 —ENF
Timing of revenue WARZRE
recognition
At a point in time EGTEE 35,082 - - 2,683 = 37,765
Over time BEE - 249 27,587 - 32,891 60,727
35,082 249 27,587 2,683 32,891 98,492
Geographical markets WEmE
Hong Kong & - - 6,609 - - 6,609
PRC and Taiwan TERAE 35,082 249 17,277 2,683 32,705 87,996
Southeast Asia REE - - 3,701 - 186 3,887
35,082 249 27,587 2,683 32,891 98,492
The geographical location of customers is based on the RPEMEMER 2 5 ESRIEREEHE RS
location at which the services were provided or the SNEXNEEER ZHENME ©
goods were delivered.
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DIER

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the following
products and service lines as operating segments.
Details of which are further described in note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic

decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEEBR(#®)

Jewellery IT Products
Products and Services Total
BB
KEEM EmRkR% ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T F#E T F#&T
2020 =Ei=1a¢
Revenue — From external WA — R B IR
customers = 9,894 39,317 49,211
Reportable segment revenue T 2% 2B A 9,894 39,317 49,211
Reportable segment (loss)/  HIBRFTEHAI T2
profit before income tax HoE(EE),
S5 Al (10,694) 1,451 (9,243)
Interest income B Wz 10 11 21
Depreciation e (1,207) (451) (1,658)
ECL allowance on trade BUNE SRR 2 T8
receivables HEEEIERE (153) = (153)
Net loss on written off/ W HEmE -
disposal of property, plant BE R F
and equipment =gi=] (244) (8) (252)
Finance costs 7% % A (18) (14) (32)
Write-down of inventories to MU F &2 r] 215
net realisable value A (2,181) - (2,181)
Reportable segment assets T Z2{OPEE 300,006 65,827 365,833
Additions to non-current FRARED I 2 IE
segment assets (other than mEMEE(SRmT
financial instruments) during BN
the year 1,098 680 1,778
Reportable segment AEFoBAas
liabilities 15,890 234,459 250,349
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

6.

114

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEEBR(#®

Jewellery IT Products
Products and Services Total
BB
KEEM 2 on M AR 75 45T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHIT
2019 —E-NEF
Revenue — From external WA — R BN
customers 1= 35,331 63,161 98,492
Reportable segment revenue 7] 235 U A 35,331 63,161 98,492
Reportable segment loss HBRFTEBAT A 2
before income tax W HEIE (11,852) (2,783) (14,635)
Interest income Bl 13 38 51
Depreciation e (1,128) (917) (2,045)
Loss on remeasurement EMFTEXRFEA
of previously held equity MEETE#ER
interest in a joint venture % (147) - (147)
Net gain on disposal of HERB AR 2K
subsidiaries =3 = 308 308
ECL allowance on other HAthpe I8 2 18
receivables HEEEERE S 9 9
Share of results of a joint EiE—HEAaEhE
venture LA (2,510) - (2,510)
Net loss on written off/ s, HEmE -
disposal of property, plant B K& 2%
and equipment E5i8 (596) - (596)
Written off of contract assets & 494 ZE#isH - (525) (525)
Finance costs B % & R (6) (47) (63)
Reportable segment assets A 2D IWEE 304,046 62,112 366,158
Additions to non-current FRARNED I IE
segment assets (other than mEEE(SRT
financial instruments) during AN
the year 934 962 1,896
Reportable segment ERDFEEE
liabilities 13,550 235,692 249,242

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

6.

DEER (&)

AEBZERENHZ2II 2 BER

BER & B 5

RAKEINZ A EEEERBER Y

BRADT

2020 2019

—EB-EFE ZE-NEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

Tt T

Reportable segment assets Al 2RO EBEE 365,833 366,158
Eliminated upon consolidation tRe NBRRR £ 88 (224,954) (224,954)
Group assets rEBZEE 140,879 141,204
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2WmoHBaE 250,349 249,242
Eliminated upon consolidation 45 A BRI S8 (224,954) (224,954)
Group liabilities rEBzEE 25,395 24,288

The Group’s non-current assets (other than financial
instruments) are divided into the following geographical
areas:

AEBZIFRDEE(SRTARIN IR

TR E D

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT T T

Hong Kong B 1,782 2,694
PRC and Taiwan R EE 1,735 979
Southeast Asia HFan 193 284
3,710 3,957

The geographical location of the non-current assets is
based on the physical location of the asset in case of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

FRBEEIHRDBINERNRETEEL
ERAEB(HENYE  BE REERE

REEEMS)ME °
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e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)
Revenue from customers which individually contributed FARME AN EBEE S —_TEEF T —H
over 10% of the Group’s revenue during the years ended F+ZA=1T—"HIEFERA10%IA LA
31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows: KEARZRERWALT :
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hnF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T 7T
Customer A' BEEA N/A" RE A" 20,275
Customer B? EFB? 9,397 N/A* A"
Customer C? BFEC? 9,119 16,698
Customer D! ZED N/A" RE A" 10,018
Customer E’ ZFE 6,251 N/A* N3 A
Customer F2 =R 4,999 N/A" i
1 Revenue from Jewellery Products segment. g REKBERD D IUWA
2 Revenue from IT Products and Services segment. 2 REBMBRERRRESEHZBA -
The corresponding revenue did not individually contribute ' EERANIFEENEAEREE—F =
over 10% of the Group's revenue during the year ended TFEY T NF+_A=+—HILHF
31 December 2020 or 2019. FWA10% A L -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hulk=
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAETT
Interest income Tl B Y s 21 51
Consultancy and management BRI REEE N
fee income 240 167
Foreign exchange gain, net PE X U % F 58 2,258 -
Government subsidy (note) ERAT AL (FEE) 989 161
Others EHih 671 320
4,179 699
Note: BRE -

For the year ended 31 December 2020, included in the government
subsidy of HK$690,000 (2019: Nil) was the wage subsidies
received under Hong Kong Government and PRC Provincial

Governments as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19. There

were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE EERABEZ(BHEESHM)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#&T FAETT
Wages, salaries and other benefits IE  HFeRHEMER 20,407 36,331
Pension costs — defined contribution RR& AN — ERE M KET 2
plans 2,070 6,404
22,477 42,735
Note: BI5E

Due to the impact of COVID-19, a number of policies including
the relief of social insurance have been promulgated by the
PRC Provincial Government from February to December 2020
to expedite resumption of economic activities, which resulted in
the relief of certain contributions to defined contribution scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

IHERSVE BNE-Z-TF_AK:
TZABRMGEELERBIAEELEBER + N
MREEEBERSE  SBHE_T_TF+
ZA=t+—RLEFERE T ERERGIEIHR
BRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

9.

118

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. HIRAEBHAIEE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging HBRATSE A EIEE IR
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Depreciation: e
- owned assets -EEE 1,091 1,135
— right-of-use assets - FREEE 567 910
Total depreciation EBE 1,658 2,045
Other expenses: EMpX
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRI BN & 620 835
Net loss on written off/disposal of Wi HEME  BMERREBZF
property, plant and equipment 518 252 596
Lease charges on short term leases RZZZT—NF—A—HZEHHEE
and leases with lease term shorter FHEBATZEAUT ZHEXN
than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 FfHEZMA 903 3,091
Legal and professional fee FELRBEEH 1,671 5,166
Written off of contract assets BHEEM - 625
Net foreign exchange loss & 5 FE1E = 683
Other expenses Hipf 4,795 7,193
Total other expenses HAnFZ 4858 8,241 18,089
Cost of inventories recognised as an REATMTFEERES - B1F
expense, including: 8,509 30,471
— Write-down of inventories to net - WORGFER &I FEE
realisable value 2,181 -
Cost of services rendered (note) TRMARTE A A (B E) 44,040 60,810
ECL allowance on trade and other FEUNE 5 BR F0 N H A e 318 2 T8
receivables HiEEEBERE 153 9

Note:

Cost of services rendered included staff costs of HK$16,615,000
(2019: HK$36,921,000), which is also included in employee

benefits expense (note 8).

GEE

BEMF S (HIEEs) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

11.

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BIBEHA

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Finance charges on lease liabilities  FBEAGEZMBESL L 32 53

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FASHAX
2020 2019
— —FT-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T

Current tax — Overseas BUEARRTE — &5

Current year NEE 14 77
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETTE 67 2
Total income tax expense FriS i f Sz s %a 81 79

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the
Group had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 25% for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

REBE_ZE-_EFER_ZT—NF+=-A=
T—HIEFE -  ARASELEEHNE
BREHHERT RS - WA BB B AT
SHIFTREE -

iR R B2 FTBBURRVR ) - o B A0S
BANKBE-Z-BER-_2-NEF+
— A=+ B 1L AR 25% B
AL EFEH -

S5 90 R RO BUIE TR 8 4 PO A SRR
Pz 4 L 40 10 22 7 T 7 0 B SR M0 17
REHE o
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

11.

120

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11. ISR #E)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss RERAMESRRIER Y Lot ERETY
at applicable tax rates: BE -
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHEIT
Loss before income tax K TS5 Bl E e (9,243) (14,635)
Tax on loss before income tax, BB BRI e AR E R ST
calculated at the rates applicable NS E 2 HRGTE 2 RS
to profits or losses in the tax Al 518 2 178
jurisdiction concerned (1,069) (2,201)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] HIE FI sz 2 1B 5 2 882 2,682
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBIMA Z TR & (540) (314)
Tax effect of temporary differences  RERERF =R HIETE
not recognised 96 (1)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R IERFHIEEIE 2 FHTETE 1,171 1,051
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses {4t Al AR MER T TE E 18 2 Fi1d
previously not recognised -1 (526) (1,140)
Under provision in prior years BAFERETE 67 2
Income tax expense FriSfi > 81 79
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z -~ E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$79,997,000 (2019:
HK$78,566,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses do not expire under current
legislation except losses of approximately HK$35,889,000
(2019: HK$34,256,000) which will be expired as follows:

11.

EHREX®E

N_ZE-_TF+_HA=+—H - ZK;%EE
*ﬁﬁw%%RIE\EﬂE\?R’]79,997,000/%75(—
JLE : 78,566,000/8 7T ) A& ¥ - F{EIK$H
RIRFERTIA o I FEF T B BB IRIA
AR A EW - MEAE4935,889,000%8
TT(—Z— 4 : 34,256,000/ T) R T
HIHARE fE R

2020 2019
—ETEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF# T T

Year of expiry: [EREER -
2020 —E-TF - 3,214
2021 —E-—1F 13,597 14,418
2022 —F-— 6,426 6,048
2023 —Eo=F 4,999 4,705
2024 :g_mi 6,238 5,871
2025 —E-RHEF 4,629 -
35,889 34,256
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —L —FF+ —H=1+—HIFEZF

12.

122

LOSS PER SHARE 12. BRESE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to KAmER AELEFIRERERBIVIZAT
owners of the Company is based on the following: YRt E -
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET T
Loss =]
Loss for the year attributable to RAREAR ABMFAREE
owners of the Company 8,717 14,680
Number of shares g4
Weighted average number of ordinary E3@A%hikE FH 8 (TA%)
shares (in thousands) 1,947,690 1,884,402
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted BE_Z—NWF+-_A=+—HItFE -
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of AEsTtE ERENERE 7 T @A AR (X hntE
basic loss per share has been adjusted for the Placing in FHHEERR - FRANEER
May 2019 (note 27(i)). B (MaE2703)) °
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per HRBE—_E-ZEEN T LFE+-HA
share because there were no dilutive potential ordinary S+ —HIFEERTED X TEL N #E
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December TEA  NEREEEERASNERE
2020 and 2019. REE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z -~ E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMREBESHFHMA L

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 2 %

EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ emoluments 13.1 EEHH
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to BEFHMORIBEGEM LT AR -
GEM Listing Rules, section 383 (1) of the Hong E8 N aEBIE383(1) 1§ & AT (1
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEENRER) R H] 5254 5 10
Companies (Disclosure of Information about ™

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Other emoluments

Hit <
Contributions
to defined
Directors’  Salaries and  contribution
fees allowances plan Total
TEHEMR
E=0e HERER TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET
2020 —BIEF
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HETEE - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia (note) FExT (M) - 984 100 1,084
Mr. Chen Yin BRELE - 534 16 550
Independent non-executive BUFHTES :
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MRE L E 180 - - 180
Ms. Na Xin Mo+ 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEEXL 120 - - 120
420 2,118 134 2,672
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMRABERSHFMAL
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ k30 16
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 13.1 EEFHME)
Other emoluments
Hiv#ie
Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and contribution
fees allowances plan Total
TERMHT
EEokn HekEa SRR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TET TET FHL
2019 —Z-NF
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HEFLE - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia (note) FELL (M) - 985 141 1,126
Mr. Chen Yin BRERE - 533 18 551
Independent non-executive BV HFHITES
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat WRELE 180 = = 180
Ms. Na Xin g 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEBLT 120 = = 120
420 2,118 177 2,715
Note: M3 -
Ms. Li Xia is also the Chief Executive Officer of the FELLTTRARBITIREE - LA
Company and her emoluments disclosed above include WERE 2 HHREEFRTTHARREMHR
the services rendered by her as Chief Executive Officer. B IRTS ©
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e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z -~ E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMRIEEESFMAL

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 25 M=)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 13.1 EEFHFME)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any RS PR RS Ry Plle= e e

directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

A=+—RBILFE - $‘§ljﬁﬂl‘1
EREENHFMERMAREE
EIMMARKEL 2 BBRE) e 1F R RER
ffE o

BE_E_TFR_F-NAF+=
A=1+—HLLFE AUBEZIHE

the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. KRB WETFN 2 5 -

13.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments 13.2 EBRZEHFMA L ZHM

The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRN - AEBRERSTHALE
highest in the Group for the year included three R=%2(ZZT—NFE:=2)8%F -
(2019: three) directors whose emoluments are EHMEE LRSI RER - F£17
reflected in the analysis presented above. The %ETEH%(_Q? NF: WEB)E&S

emoluments of the remaining two (2019: two) HA T ZFHBn T -
individuals during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Salaries and allowances e MoERE 720 720
Contributions to defined TE R RET IR
contribution plan 30 30
750 750

HFHNRIATEE :

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

ETAH
2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
Emolument band: HINEE -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y% - BERFZE
EQUIPMENT
Computer
Leasehold and office  Furniture and
improvements equipment fixtures  Motor vehicles Total
BRBLE
HENEEE # BREE B @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THEL T THL
At 1 January 2019 R=B-hn%-A-H
Cost B 1,946 12,215 6,844 4,529 25,534
Accumulated depreciation and  ZFHTEREEE
impairment losses (1,927) (12,008) (6,166) (1,215) (21,316)
Net book amount REFE 19 207 678 3,314 4218

Year ended 31 December HE-Z-hE1+=R

2019 S+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 19 207 678 3,314 4218
Exchange differences EAER 6 (3) (1) = 2
Additions NE 124 82 - - 206
Disposal/Written off L& /Hish - (27) (564) (5) 596)
Acquired through business BREBA MR (F33)

combination (note 33) 530 22 120 - 672
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR(F34)

(note 34) (35) (19) = o (54)
Depreciation & (198) (74) (110) (753) (1,135)
Closing net book amount EXEHFE 446 188 123 2,556 3,313

At 31 December 2019 and R-BE-AE+=A=1-H

1 January 2020 R=Z-E%-f-H
Cost AR 2,329 10,781 571 4,498 18,179
Accumulated depreciation and  ZFHTEREEE

impairment losses (1,883) (10,593) (448) (1,942) (14,866)

Net book amount as at 31 R-Z-h&+=-A=+-H
December 2019 HREFE 446 188 123 2,556 3,313
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. V¥ - BERRE®)

Computer
Leasehold and office  Furniture and
improvements equipment fixtures Motor vehicles Total
ERRH
HEMEHEE DNERE BRREE HE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR FHT FHT TR
Year ended 31 December BZ-_E-_EF+_RH
2020 St-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 446 188 123 2,556 3,313
Exchange differences EH =S 2 6 2 6 16
Additions NE 317 84 13 112 526
Disposal/Written off HE /i (236) (28) (94) (22) (380)
Depreciation & (252) (60) (16) (763) (1,091)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 277 190 28 1,889 2,384
At 31 December 2020 R-E-E%+-B=+-H
Cost XA 2,115 10,778 420 4,199 17,512
Accumulated depreciation and  ZEHTERHEESE
impairment losses (1,838) (10,588) (392) (2,310) (15,128)
Net book amount EHFE 271 190 28 1,889 2,384
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

128

15. ERREEE

Land and
buildings
T RIEF
HK$'000
F#E T
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&E—HA—H
Cost BN 1,369
Accumulated depreciation K E -
Net book amount as at 1 January R—B—BMEREFE 1,369
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 1,369
Exchange differences EHEHE (18)
Additions NS 1,018
Depreciation e (910)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEWB AT (FE34) (815)
Net book amount BRHEEE 644
At 31 December 2019 and RZZB-NF+=ZA=+-HRZ=ZEZEF
1 January 2020 —HA—H
Cost AR 1,506
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (862)
Net book amount BREEE 644
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. FREEE®)
Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$°000
F#& T
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z_ZHF+-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 644
Exchange differences E =R (3)
Additions V=1 1,252
Depreciation e (567)
Net book amount ERMEFE 1,326
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZEF+=-H=+—H
Cost BN 2,824
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (1,498)
Net book amount BRMEFE 1,326
The details in relation to these leases are set out in note BEAZERE 2 FIEFHNMIFE26 ©
26.
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. KRB AR 2%
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December N_E_EEN—"ZE—HNE+_A=+—
2020 and 2019 are as follows: B TZMBEARZFBOT :
Place/Country of Particulars of issued and paid Percentage of ownership  Principal

Name of company incorporation Place of operation up capital/registered capital interest held by the Company activities

ARER AfRI4E/BR  EERY BRARMRERE/EMEARE ADAFBFERREZAAM  TEER

Excel (BVI) Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 each 100%° (2019: 100%*)  Investment holding

Excel (BVI] Limited* EBRAES B 5000REREREIZT 2RI 100%° (ZE-NE100%)  RAER

Excel Consulting and Solutions Malaysia Malaysia 100,000 shares of Malaysian 100% (2019: 100%)  Development of computer software and
Sdn. Bhd.* Ringgit (“MYR") 1 each provision of sale and marketing services

Excel Consulting and Solutions ~ BRER SREE 100,000k BHEE S RAEE 100%(Z2-NF 100%) FEERANERRMEERTHEERS
Scln. Bhd.* (5% )1z ikfa

21 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$13,001,000 80.1% (2019: 80.1%)  Application services provider

21 Limited* & £ 13,001,000%7 80.1%(Z5-NE:80.1%) ERRHERLER

HR21 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 93% (2019: 93%)  Development of computer software and

provision of maintenance services

HR21 Limited* B &% 28T BH(ZF-NF:03%)  REEREHREARERE

World Sky International Limited* ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 1 share of US§1 100% (2019: 100%")  Investment holding

ERERARAR EBRAES B IRERIZT LR 100%° (ZE-NE100%)  RAER

SRAREMIERAT PRC PRC HK$127,000,000 100% (2019: 100%)  Design and sales of gold and jewellery
{Hong Kong Jewellery products
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited@)**

SEEHEHERAT hE hE 127,000000%7 100%(ZF-NF 100%)  RAREEECRFEER
MTEEETERZGERAT PR PRC Renminbi (“RMB")6,000,000 100% (2019: 100%)  Development of computer software and
(Excel Solution Technology provision of maintenance services

Limited@)**

MIEEEEAERZRERLT 8 GilET AR (T ARE])6,000,0007 100%(=F- 0% : 100%) BB
TEEHPIERAR PRC PRC HK$20,000,000 100% (2019: 100%)  Development of computer software and
(Excel Software (Shenzhen) provision of maintenance services

Co., Limited@)**
SR RINERAA ] G 20,000,000 7 100%(ZF-NF:100%)  FHEERAFREERERH
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—Er A=t AR

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. AMB AR 2= (&)
(Continued)
Place/Country of Particulars of issued and paid Percentage of ownership  Principal
Name of company incorporation Place of operation  up capital/registered capital interest held by the Company activities
AR EMAILY/BR XN BRRMRKA/EMEARE AOAFBAERRRZ AN  EEER
SENEREMMER AR PRC PRC US$150,000 (note) 100% (2019: 100%) Provision of professional services
(Excel Global IT Services
(Hangzhou) Co., Limited@)**
HEAERRMMERAR b il 150,000 e (K3t 100%(=5-NE 100%)  RESERK
FIEARERAERAT Taiwan Taiwan New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$") 100% (2019: 100%)  Provision of professional services
(New River Information 11,913,620
Technology & Services
Co., Limited@)*

HBANERAERAT B 4 FAR(HALN N30T 100%(ZF-hE:100%) REEZRE
RRTEEBSERARLRL  PRC PRC RIMB10,000,000 100% (2019: 100%)  Development of computer software
AR 7] (Dongguan Excel and provision of maintenance

International Finance and services
Technology Incubation Centre
Company Limited@)**
SERERCENARRL  BE i ARK100000007C  100%(=F-h%:100%) AEERRARRERERHE

BRAF

MIEFEERAR PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% (2019: 100%)  Wholesaling and retailing of gold, platinum,
(Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery diamond, karat gold, jade and jewellery
Co., Ltd.@)* products

AIEREERAT b L ARH10,000,0007 100%(ZF-NF 100%) &% 9% B K& IBERAKEER

MHERTE

# Issued capital held directly by the Company # RAREZEFADLEITRAE

* Limited liability company * BRATE

*x Wholly foreign-owned enterprise wx INERE

@ The English names of the PRC or Taiwan companies @ TR EEARNEXEBIEFP XA

are translation of their Chinese names for identification

purpose only and are not their official names

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the registered share

capital of Excel Global IT Services (Hangzhou) Co., Limited was
increased from US$70,000 to US$150,000. As at 31 December
2020, the additional registered share capital of US$80,000 has

not been paid.

MER  EHER

GEE

BEZ

JCIEHNZE150,000% 7T - RZTZF

MIEREX LT

TZTFF+_A=ZF+—HIEFE B
NERHR TN BRA TE‘JEﬂﬁﬂxmmoooo%

EE+ A=

T—A - FIEEMALAL0,000% T H A ©

— & —

=

TEFHR HERARERERAE

131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

16.

132

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The Group includes two subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"), the details and the
summarised financial information, before intragroup
eliminations, are as follows:

—EFEf _H=1—HIFE

16. RHE ARz #)

ERIRZARBIMNBRR » NEERR
HAKEFAXREEIBEFELRBRAE
BFEECEERD - EFAR/INHEM
MBAREMERBRNITE

A E B E T RS A SR A28 ([ 3
R ) 2 HBAT - B WEERTH
B RS R 1T M P2 TR 3% ) 85
m -

121 Limited HR21 Limited

HK$'000 HK$°000
FTET FExT
2020 i i 223
Proportion of ownership interests  JEIZERR iz Ffr?—rﬁfrﬁ%%\ SEIN
and voting rights held by NCI ZED 19.9% 7%
Current assets MBEE 208 5,407
Non-current assets EMBNEE - 7
Current liabilities mENBE (40,806) (6,617)
Net liabilities FAE (40,598) (1,203)
Carrying amount of NCI SEFE R T 2 BREE (1,835) 369
Revenue A = 6,525
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(ER), 5 (618) 74
Total comprehensive (expense)/  FRE2®E(FI%), e
income for the year (618) 74
(Loss)/Profit attributable to NCI JEIERRIE S B (L 2 (B518), % I (123) 5
Total comprehensive expense RS (L 2 2T B5E
attributable to NCI (123) 5
Dividend paid to NCI B IR IR SR AR - -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated RLEE(EAH)/ EEZHETEE
from operating activities ekl (3) 221

Net cash flows used in investing & EFEFEBHEZIRE T
activities

=

L F

7

Net cash flows from financing REME T 2R REFEE

activities
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RHIB AR 2= (&)
(Continued)
|21 Limited HR21 Limited
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FHIT
2019 —E-NF
Proportion of ownership interests  JEfERR iz ATHFFT At i o M R
and voting rights held by NCI HEZBEDL 19.9% 7%
Current assets MENE E 826 8,004
Non-current assets EMBNEE = 16
Current liabilities mENBE (40,805) (9,297)
Net liabilities FAE (39,979) (1,277)
Carrying amount of NCI IR A 2 2 BRI B (1,712) 364
Revenue A = 6,609
Loss for the year FANBE (6) (455)
Total comprehensive expense for FR &M 42%8
the year (6) (455)
Loss attributable to NCI IR R 2 B 18 (1) (32)
Total comprehensive expense IR RS B 2 2T L 4258
attributable to NCI (1) (32)
Dividend paid to NCI BT IEERR IR = =
Net cash flows used in operating K& EFHRH RS HEFEE
activities (5) (316)
Net cash flows used in investing REEFEFESHEZIRSHE/F5E
activities = (4)
Net cash flows from financing REAME R IRE nE R
activities - -
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

17. HttE&mEE

2020 2019
it —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THETT
Financial assets at FVOCI RAABEESAHMLZERENS
(non-recycling) BEE(TIEE)

Unlisted private equity fund FEMRAAREES 464 476

Unlisted equity investments FE_ETRRAIZE (FiTEE(a))

(note (a)) 22,638 18,117
23,102 18,593

Notes: M3 -

(a) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the amount mainly (a) R_E-—TER-—ZT—HhE+-_A=1+
represented the fair value of 10% interests in an unlisted —HB > ZeBIBEN—FIIELTLA
private entity established in the PRC, which is principally EEMNI0%ERNALEME  ZEER
engaged in property development, property leasing and RES  TEREYEE WER
property management services. ERYESTIBRG -

(b) The fair values of unlisted private equity fund and (b) ELFTRABREES RIEFTRAKRE
unlisted equity investments have been measured as M AR BED MK 37 667 S -
described in note 37.6.

18. #&
18. INVENTORIES
2020 2019
—g-% —2—NnE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Gold and jewellery products: EESNKEEM :

Work in progress TEE - 2

Finished goods RUAK oA 61,024 53,596

Packing materials BEME 530 1,428

61,554 55,026
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS AND 19. SN EEREHNERE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
19.1 Contract assets 19.1 EHEE
2020 2019
—EB-EF R e
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl Tt

Contract assets arising from  RIEANWELZ SN EE

service contracts 3,460 6,141
The decrease of contract assets during the year BHE-_T-FTF+-_A=+—HL
ended 31 December 2020 is mainly due to the FENEHNEERLTIEEHRE
decrease in scale of ongoing service contracts ROBERBEEOHERD - BHE
at the end of the year. The decrease of contract —E-NFF+_A=+—BHLFE
assets during the year ended 31 December 2019 WENEERLAIEZRRFAL
is mainly due to the disposal of subsidiaries during EWE AR (HIzE34) ©

the year (note 34).

The balance of contract assets is expected to be EHEEHBTEHRER —F ALK
recovered within one year. B o
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

19.2 Contract liabilities

I

EREGHAEE®)

19.2 EHBEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Contract liabilities arising TEWBLRRZRIGENEEZ
from service contracts from BHAaE
billings in advance
of performance 7,369 6,604
Contract liabilities arising from 4 & RIBWRIBEL 2
receipts in advance of sales AHaE
of goods 114 159
7,483 6,763

When the Group receives a deposit before the
sales activity commences or services perform, this
will give rise to contract liabilities.

The increase of contract liabilities as at 31 December
2020 is mainly due to the increase in average
price for maintenance service during the year. The
decrease of contract liabilities as at 31 December
2019 is mainly due to the disposal of subsidiaries
during the year (note 34).

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning
of the year amounting to HK$6,601,000 (2019:
HK$8,039,000) have been recognised as revenue
during the year.

The balance of contract liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EWE RN

2020 2019

- i —T-NEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT FHBT

Trade receivables U E ZER R 6,297 9,528
Less: ECL allowance B TEERE B EIa R (153) =
6,144 o) S

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

Trade receivables for IT Products and Services are due
within 0 to 60 days (2019: 0 to 60 days) from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted.

The Group’s sales of gold and jewellery products comprised
mainly cash sales to retail customers and credit sales to
franchisees and wholesalers which are due within 0 to 90
days (2019: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue recognition
if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net

AEBEERARWE SRR S ERK

R BREEBZANBERAKREEY
BERER -

B AR E i IR 2 U 5 R R B
BEARAZERTBE(ZE-NF  BEX
TEIRZE - EREafB8NTBEZE
BAEBEEMAREBELRR I BER
HE—FEE -

AEBEZRE RREERHETZEER
ZERPZREWHE  URAKFFINER
EMtEMZEEHE  EEHEHERR
FEATH(ZE-AF  TERNTH)RA
28 -

RiFEHEA R W ARER B H(HE
7)) BEESRR(EHRAREEER

of ECL allowance, was as follows: BB ZREBEDTUOT ¢
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0 — 30H 6,001 2,212
31 - 60 days 31 — 60H 32 27
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H 87 2,906
Over 90 days HiE90 H 24 178
6,144 5,323
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables

21.

138

20.

W E SRR &)

EWEZEFEHREEBEER B ZEEN

is as follows: T:
2020 2019
—ECEBF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Balance at 1 January W—A—Bz&& = =

ECL allowance recognised FNERZBHEEEEERE

during the year 153 -
Balance at 31 December R+-A=+—HBz&#% 153 =

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HEWFIE - RERFAEN
AND PREPAYMENTS FRIE
2020 2019
“ECEF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Other receivables (notes (i), (ii) E o U R (MG ~ i) Bediii)
and (iii)) 8,519 9,333
Deposits bireia 283 730
Amount due from former FEU BB & 2 B 5 E (MR (iv)
associate (note (iv)) 4,304 4,427
Prepayments TERTRIE 1,205 6,716
Value-added tax recoverable B {EbtEr s 5,074 4,964
19,385 26,170
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21.
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The movement of gross balance of other receivables is

as follows:

H b fE Y k18
I (&)
FisE -

- RERAMS

(i) HAb M FORAE R B Z BB T

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RER ERE BB #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FTExT TET THET
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hF—A—H
tkE s 13,855 L 10,649 24,504
New amounts originated MENEE 70,603 - - 70,603
Amounts recovered B E S (69,968) = = (69,968)
Amount written off MiHe 5 - - (10,514) (10,514)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF+=A
and 1 January 2020 =+—Hk=ZE=%
F—A—HAMEH 14,490 - 135 14,625
New amounts originated boipedent-) 81,377 - - 81,377
Amounts recovered BEWESEE (82,761) - - (82,761)
Amount written off MigeRE - - (135) (135)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+-A
=t+—HN&EH 13,106 - - 13,106
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(ii)

— ==

—7—7

FFEF_A=+—HIFE

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HEWRIE - RERFEN
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) FRIE ()
Notes: (Continued) BisE < (48)
The movement in the ECL allowance of other receivables (ii) Hih U XIBTE i E BB R R v B )
is as follows: mE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—PEER ZFRER FEoREER RET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FET FETT T
Balance at 1 January 2019 —T-h&E—A—
H e &85 r - 10,640 10,640
ECL allowance recognised R ZEREEEE
B - - 9 9
Amount written off B - = (10,5614) (10,514)
Balance at 31 December 2019 —hEF+=A
and 1 January 2020 —+ BN =-Z—
TFE—A—HWN%E
R - - 135 135
Amount written off EMESEHE - - (135) (135)
Balance at 31 December 2020 W-ZE-% E‘T‘ A
s =N 0F = - - -
Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 (iii) REER-_Z-_ZTEF+-_A=+—H

140

(iii)

(iv)

December 2020 was advance to a former related party
of HK$4,046,000 (2019: HK$5,688,000). The amount due
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due are unsecured,
repayable on demand.

interest-free and

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$11,120,000 (2019: HK$14,413,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

23. TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods
ranging from 0 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 60 days). Based
on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables were as follows:

22.

23.

BERBITEMR

AEE RS RIBITHEFKETE11,120,000
BIT(ZZE—L4F : 14,413,000/ 7T ) 77
WA BESEREITUAREHEZRITE
Ko AREATTTERLBRER  RiIEF
Bl 2 SNIE 5 I B B R AETE ~ ESME R
RGBT - AEE T EEEBERE
TTHNE BT 2 SRITHE AR 5 AN
blfg °

P+ & 5 AR X

HENGTAEBZEEANTEEAT
A(ZZ2—A%F: =+HZESTAH) - RIE
BEBH BNESERRZEERI TN
™

2020 2019

e —T-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR THET

0 - 30 days 0 — 30H 2,030 1,043
Over 90 days HB3890H - 33
2,030 1,076

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values ESHELBEEYE  AHENZESE

of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

RZERAERRRAABEIAEIH -
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 24. HihERRKIERTARER
CHARGES
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THAT
Other payables (note (i)) ot A~ 20 (B RE()) 4,269 4,836
Accrued charges JEie & 2,066 1,215
6,335 6,051
Note: Bt aE
(i) Included in the Group's other payables as at 31 December (i) REBWN-_ZE-_ETF+-_A=+—H2
2020 was staff bonus payable of HK$334,000 (2019: H b fE < 2 IE B 35334,0008 T (= —
HK$1,801,000) and deposits received from franchisees of JLEF :1,801,000/8 70) Z BT B TIEAT
HK$2,250,000 (2019: HK$2,176,000). K2 B R EF 0 BB B W BN 2 #2 € 2,250,000
PEIT(ZZ—NEF : 2,176,0007T) °
(i) All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values (i) FMBESEEEHNE - FiEEN
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to BREREAZEAMERRAALBE
be a reasonable approximation of fair value. ZEREBAE -
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 25. BERESMIE

25.

142

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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26.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual

26.

HERE

TRETASEHERENEHOKR T 2N

maturities of the Group's lease liabilities: HARR :
2020 2019
—ECEBF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total minimum lease payments: RIEBE B -
- Due within one year - —FREH 538 477
- Due in the second to fifth years -REZERFANIH 907 208
1,445 685
Future finance charges on lease HEABZRRTH I H
liabilities (87) (27)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaEHE 1,358 658
Present value of minimum lease RERSNRZEE
payments:
- Due within one year - —FREH 486 461
- Due in the second to fifth years -RE_ZERFRNEEH 872 197
1,358 658
Less: Portion due within one year A BEEARBAEERN —FAEEEH
included under current
liabilities (486) (461)
Portion due after one year included Dt AERE A BN —FEZEAZH
under non-current liabilities 872 197
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained the RZBE-FTF+-_A=+—H  A£EPE

right to use land and buildings through four (2019: three)
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run on an initial
period of one to three years. (2019: one to three years)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
cash outflows for the leases are HK$1,484,000 (2019:

HK$4,039,000).

BENG(ZE—NF  ZH)HEHHER
BEATHREFERN - HEA—RYL
BH—Z2=ZF(ZFE—hF: —2=F)-
HE_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—RHILFE -
HAEMIR SR EEA1,484,000/8 T(=

Z— N4 ¢ 4,039,000#7T) °
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BB
2020 2019
—ECEBF —E-NEF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
iy 4| FTET & E TAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of BREEIETZ
HK$0.1 each Rl
At 1 January and 31 R—A—BEt+=
December A=+—8H 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1 January n—H—H 1,947,690,000 194,769 1,782,690,000 178,269
Issue of ordinary shares @BACEHITL R
by Placing (note (i) B (PR EEG)) - - 165,000,000 16,500
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 1,947,690,000 194,769 1,947,690,000 194,769
Notes: PR -

(i) On 8 May 2019, the Company entered into an
agreement for the placing of up to an aggregate of
165,000,000 new ordinary shares to not less than six
placees at a price of HK$0.105 per share. On 21 May
2019, the conditions set out in the placing agreement
was fulfilled and the placing were completed, in which
165,000,000 shares were placed at HK$0.105 per share
(the “Placing”). The net proceeds of HK$17,064,000
(after deduction of the Placing commission and other
expenses of HK$261,000 from the gross proceeds of
HK$17,325,000) raised from the Placing were credited
to the share capital and share premium account of the
Company.

(ii) The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.
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(ii)

RZZE—NEFRANB » RARIFIL—
DiHE - RER0I05B T ZEBERAET
DR N R AL E & $£165,000,000
BEFEBR R_ZT—NFREA=F+—
H - EEHBEAEKGEERREER
2K - E 165,000,000 B3 A% 17 1% 5 B
0.105F Tl E([BEE]) - HEEEH
P18 3B F 517,064,000 7T (&£ Bk
P13 3R B 48%5817,325,0007% T Y BC & 18
& R HEMES261,00087) 5T AR T
RIRRAS R AR BB -

EEBEAE AR RUBATRE KK
B BAEERADAEH ERERRG
B - MASBREAARZNGBE
EZBREH -
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 28. KA TBMBEARRAER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-8E =T ILE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FTHET FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries i IEENGIPA —* -*
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TBIHIE 590 223
Cash and bank balances e MBITER 5 727
595 950
Current liabilities HRBAE
Other payables and accrued charges — E{th & {718 R FE IR & 2,503 836
Amounts due to a subsidiary FERPMB A RIZIA 5,205 =
Amounts due to directors EREESEHIE 8,088 9,682
15,796 10,518
Net current liabilities FEHEEEE (15,201) (9,568)
Total assets less current liabilities SEAERABHERE (15,201) (9,568)
Net liabilities BEE (15,201) (9,568)
EQUITY IR AE
Share capital RE AR 27 194,769 194,769
Reserves A 29(a) (209,970) (204,337)
Capital deficiencies BAE 4 (15,201) (9,568)
* Less than HK$1,000 * LFA1,0008 7T
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of R-E-—F=ZA=+—HBKEFeitE
directors on 31 March 2021. R IeRET o
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HEY
Director BZE Director o
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29. RESERVES

146

(a) The movement of the Company’s reserves

are as follows:

29. f#
(a)

i
AARZEEREHMT -

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
R R E -4 = et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FExT FERT
(note 29(b))

(M47E29(b))

At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF
—A—H
Issue of ordinary shares by iBiBAl &3 1T L @AL
Placing
Transaction costs B & 21T M AR e G
attributable to issue of MR 5ER

ordinary shares by Placing

Loss for the year and total FREEBEFAEE
comprehensive expense S 48 %8
for the year

At 31 December 2019 and WZ-—ZE—HE+=A

1 January 2020 =t+t—HRZZE=
THE—-H—H
Loss for the year and total FREEBEFAEE
comprehensive expense FsZ 458

for the year

At 31 December 2020 N—E-ZE+=A
=+-8

(b) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the Company
and net proceeds received from the issuance of the
shares of the Company.

The application of the share premium account is

governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act.
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217,968 (344,023) (126,055)
825 = 825
(261) - (261)

= (78,846) (78,846)
218,532 (422,869) (204,337)
- (5,633) (5,633)
218,532 (428,502) (209,970)

(b) RUEE

P 34 B 15 A 1 ) B ) 1O B T £
ARRETROABFIAFRLE
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS

31.

At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-
term leases are as follows:

—FES _H=1—HIFE

30. HEERIE

K& - SHMEENHEHEAENT :

2020 2019

it St 22 —h&

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TR

Within one year —FER 190 1,100
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had committed to RZFE—NFE+ZA=1T—H ' X&EE

a lease for land and buildings in which the lease had not
yet commenced. The total future cash outflows for this
lease amounting to HK$993,000 in aggregate which are
included in the table above.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had provided guarantee
for a former associate, Excel Technology International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Excel HK"), to a third party, in respect of
all monies owed by and/or the obligations and liabilities of
Excel HK to the third party under a service contract to the
extent of HK$170,000 (2019: Nil). At 31 December 2020,
no provision for the Group's obligation under the guarantee
contract has been recognised as there was no amount due
by Excel HK to the third party and the directors considered
that it was not probable that the service obligations to be
performed by Excel HK would not be met.

31.

7¥< ARl EARRBHEEN T REFERE
o Wt E A 51993,000/8 T2 RRIRE
/;\LEZE'%EE.#J\EJ:%E

BBEREL

R-ZF-_FTFE+_A=1+—8 A%HE
FLATEE 2 A RIEE R ER (FR)BRA

A([EBEEDRE—DIRF S QM ERN
T—RE=ZFZHERRE/REEREA
B AREBBERAREFE=TRHTEESHEL
PR /170,0008 T(ZF—NF : &) 2
R o-M-_F_FTF+-_A=+—0 @R
THRBEBABARERZZE=)7 - B&
EERREBBETAREEIBETARBR
BRI A ERAKERBEZNDERE
M2 BAEFLEE -
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32.

148

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties:

32. EEBEARS

BR T %

FRBMBRER LMD ARER

5,/ BRI - FRAREE TR AT
ATBEARS :

2020 2019
—g-%% e
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BB L £ REME TR THT
Company in which a director of the Company
has interests
ANRESHEREDNR
ATEEREEHROERD A
(Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd*) Sales of gold and jewellery products - 53
(“Shenzhen Yihua") (notes (a) and (b)) HERKEERHEE
AYTBEREEHROERD A Processing fee paid - 409
(MRY2E ) (fiEka) - (b)) ERMIER

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The English name of the PRC company is translation of
its Chinese name for identification purpose only and is
not its official name.

Shenzhen Yihua is a shareholder of the Company as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 and is ultimately controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping, an executive director of the
Company.

The above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

These transactions were conducted in the Group's
normal course of business and at mutually agreed prices
and terms.
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GG

(a)

(b)

ZFBERRZAXERIEZFBHETX
w2 EHBEA  WIEHIEARH -

RZZEZZEEFR-_TF-NF+A=*+
—B RINBEAKRQARZKE - W H
NATIRITE S HE T RERKES -

LB )T R B IMERBER B A
BERS(FERGEMEMRAE —+

=)

HERGURAEEHERBBRETRE
TTREZ B RIGFETT -
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32.

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Key management personnel remuneration

The emoluments of the directors of the Company, who
represent the key management personnel, during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

32.

BEARZ &)

FEEBEAEME

RBEE_ZF_FFR_F-NFt=-A=
+— Elﬂ:i& AEBER(NET2EE
AB)FMMT

2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Short term employee benefits EHESER 2,538 2,538
Post-employment benefits BB 12T 134 177
2,672 2,715
BUSINESS COMBINATION 33. ¥KE6
Deemed acquisition of Shenzhen Yu Tak R-Z-HIERERBRIEEKRSE
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“SZ Yu Tak Jewellery”) in ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ(ﬁﬂéi}llﬁﬂ%f*;ﬁ
2019
Prior to 1 July 2019, the Group's interest in SZ Yu Tak R-ZE—NF+LA—HAT  AEBENFY
Jewellery was accounted for as a joint venture. HERBE A —HEEDEANR -
On 1 July 2019, a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu R-E—NFtA—8 KEBZHEAQ

entered into a supplementary agreement, pursuant to
which the Group is entitled to appoint two out of three
directors with equal voting rights in the board of directors
of SZ Yu Tak Jewellery. As a result of the supplementary
agreement, the Group obtained control of SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery and SZ Yu Tak Jewellery became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group with 95% equity interest
since 1 July 2019. SZ Yu Tak Jewellery is principally
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of gold, platinum,
diamond, karat gold, jade and jewellery products.

RIEREEFTUMAWE - Bl - A&E
EENRHEREESTEPLE=RE
FHEAME  BEHEREFERAE - AEERA
BEBEMEBUS RYNEERE =5 -
FIEHEREE - NFLA—BXA
$E.%ﬁ95%ﬂﬁﬁgz#%§ﬁﬁgﬂﬁj 2

FINHEXETENETES  He - #
E ‘K -~ EERHKREEMOAERTE o
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Deemed acquisition of Shenzhen Yu Tak
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“SZ Yu Tak Jewellery”) in
2019 (Continued)

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of SZ

—EFEf _H=1—HIFE

33. ¥¥att@®

REZ2-NFREWE R EEHKE
“ﬁ_ﬁE’D\E (DRI EERE 1) (&)

AYIEIEIRE AR (F K B B0 Al BB E

Yu Tak Jewellery as at the date of deemed acquisition ERBFEZAREERT -
were as follows:
HK$°000
F &t
Cash and bank balances & RIRITIF 120
Property, plant and equipment L E N 672
Inventories =E 12
Deposits, prepayments and other receivablesiz® - T8 {338 & E {th j& U 32008 786
Other payables and accrued charges HENFIBEREREA (1,296)
Contract liabilities aHaE (6)
Net identifiable assets acquired FriBE ml s n B = FE 288
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (14)
Fair value of share of net assets at date of RIEIEUREE HHIE(EEEZERN AL EBE
deemed acquisition 274
Less: Interest in a joint venture VEAE MeEhE s En (421)
Loss on remeasurement of previously held St E%AIEANA L OERR ZEE
equity interest in a joint venture (147)
Net cash inflow on deemed acquisition: REWEZESHAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriERe MR e EEY 120
Since the date of deemed acquisition, SZ Yu Tak BEERERS 22— HhLE+=-A

Jewellery contributed HK$647,000 to the Group’s
revenue and HK$2,247,000 to the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019,
the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year
would have been HK$99,154,000 and HK$14,846,000
respectively.
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—t—HILEE /ﬂwﬁﬂ%ﬁa%ﬁé$%l
H U A &647,00078 T KBk A2,247,000
BT e

ﬁHﬂzE%%IE%%EﬁA —E—hF—AF—
CRIAREEFARRKRAREERS A
99,1 54,0008 7T 14,846,000 7T °
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33.

34.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of additional interests in SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery in 2019

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 16 September
2019 (the "“Resolution”), the registered capital of SZ
Yu Tak Jewellery was reduced from RMB13,000,000
to RMB10,000,000, among which, RMB9,999,999 and
RMB1 (approximately HK$11,199,999 and HK$1) will be
contributed by the subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu,
respectively. As a result of the Resolution, the Group's
interest in SZ Yu Tak Jewellery was increased from 95%
to0 99.99999%. In October 2019, the Group acquired
remaining equity interest in SZ Yu Tak Jewellery from
Mr. Zhu at a consideration of HK$1.

As a result of the acquisition, the difference between
the consideration paid of HK$1 and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests acquired of HK$14,000 was
recognised in the capital reserve.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 December 2019, the Group disposed of the entire
interest in a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, Excelink
Development Corporation (“Excelink Development”),
together with Excelink Development’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Excel Technology (Shanghai) Co., Limited to
an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$100,000, which was settled in January 2020.

33.

34.

¥XkE6te)

REZB-NFWRBRYIHEHRE 2
SR

BER-Z—AENA T+ NBRENRE
R((ZARZRR])  FEEHRENZME
N A R#13,000,000 TR EARKE
10,000,0007T * E A AR# 9,999,999 T
M ABRB17T(4911,199,999% 7T 178 7T)
HoRRAEBHBARRALEERE -
RzRZERE @ AEBRRINEELRE
REZE 95 %IE ANZE99.99999% ° N =T —
NFE+A AEEURE1BTRALE
U BRI E IR E MR N IRAE o

RUE% - 1B THE NRER14,0007%
TTREWEIFIEREREMEZEZERE
ANEERER o

& B 2 7

RZZE—-—AE+_A+8 A&£H
MBYE=ZFTHEREEZENBERQ
Al Excelink Development Corporation
([Excelink Development] )& & H & &Kt
BRAEBNERHERE(EE)BRAR
B2 - HERER100,000% T
ERZZ_ZTF—HEE °
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. HEWE AR (&)
(Continued)
HK$'000
T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEXZ4|IECEEREED T :
control was lost:
Cash and bank balances BR& RRTTHER 3,288
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 54
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 815
Contract assets BHEE 6,503
Trade and other receivables FEUSE 5 BR 5k I E A FE UL 5RIR 340
Other payables and accrued charges HihfENZOERTEIRE A (3,653)
Amounts due to the group companies RSB RN RFKIE (5,688)
Lease liabilities HEAE (816)
Contract liabilities BHEaE (1,123)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFEE (280)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEM B AW :
Consideration receivable R E 100
Net liabilities disposed of LEZFEE 280
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of kAW BARIREIREN QEREHHE
net liabilities of the subsidiaries reclassified ABREZHNBARFAEMRBERTIER
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control EE
of the subsidiaries (72)
Gain on disposal HE W Es 308
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRESREFE .
Consideration received in cash and cash WHIR & MRS BYWNRE
equivalents -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZREMREEED (3,288)
(3,288)
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35.

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH
TRANSACTION

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into certain lease contracts related to land
and buildings in which additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities amounting to HK$1,252,000
(2019: HK$1,018,000) was recognised at the lease
commencement date.

35. FRERNSH

Brit SR E B HMREME DA RENR
5/ AR AEERFRBUATHRS

%5

REE_ZT_ZEFF+_A=+—HLHF
B AEEFVETHLIHWREFHEBRD
HEAY  EPRHERKBBHERAE
FREEENIMEEAE,252,0008 (=
ZT— N4 : 1,018,000 7T) °
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. BIEERBELEZEBEYHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from AEBRBETHELEZABEEH A H1E
financing activities can be classified as follows: mR

Amounts due

Lease liabilities to directors
HEER EREERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE—-HF—H 1,369 20,785
Cash-flows: Re&RE :
Repayments to directors RESEERE - (11,103)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERE AL E D (895) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEEREF BT (53) -
Non-cash: RS :
Entering into new leases AV HEE 1,018 =
Interest expenses (note 10) F A% (fEE10) 53 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEMB AR (FIFE34) (816) -
Exchange differences fE X Z 5 (18) -
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=Z—hE+=A=+—-HK
“Z-EF-F—H 658 9,682
Cash-flows: BeRE:
Repayments to directors REEEENE - (1,594)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEfNEERe R H D (549) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERHEERSFEL D (32) =
Non-cash: kRE:
Entering into new leases RN EEE 1,252 =
Interest expenses (note 10) FlEFZ (HEE10) 32 -
Exchange differences e =% (3) =
At 31 December 2020 R-B-_ZFEF+-F=+—H 1,358 8,088
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

37.

BEEREERAAEENE

AEERRERRRGBET RNERE
AERERS R T AMAEN KRR - &
BRERSEM SRR (23RNSR R R =R
Rk) - EERREREIERE

AEBEGRBERARTMEEEMHR
2 WERBITERIERRARR - AEEE
Bz I T T BRER R AR ST RS - AR
BAEEAZ Z HERBBRERE - EF
RN kRAEEESBERRARIBR

AEEMPREMIARRZBREREE
BRAEERARRZITEHEZE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. W XEREERAAEBEFE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (4&)
(Continued)
37.1 Categories of financial assets and 371 sRIEEREEZER
liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

REMBIRAR 25 2 REEY
EATERNzEREENRTRAE:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENATENSRERE
— Trade receivables —EWE ZIRR 6,144 5,323
— Other receivables and deposits —Hip U RS 13,106 14,490
- Cash and bank balances —Be RIRITER 23,524 25,994
Financial assets at FVOCI BAnBEFAEMCEZEKEN
(non-recycling) CREE(TAEE)
— Unlisted private equity fund —FLEMLAREES 464 476
- Unlisted equity investments —JE TR AKE 22,638 18,117
65,876 64,400
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities measured at REERAGTENSRAE
amortised cost
— Trade payables BB SRR 2,030 1,076
— Other payables and accrued —HEfENFEREIRER
charges 6,335 6,051
- Amounts due to directors —ENESEHE 8,088 9,682
- Lease liabilities -HEaRE 1,358 658
17,811 17,467
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

37.2

37.3

37.4

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure
to foreign currency risk arise primarily from its
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
United States Dollars (“US$"”) and RMB. These
are not the functional currencies of the group
entities to which these transactions relate. As the
financial assets and liabilities denominated in US$
and RMB are insignificant, the exposure to foreign
currency risk is considered minimal.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances and lease liabilities.

The exposure to interest rates for the Group’'s
bank balances and lease liabilities is considered
immaterial.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and from its investing
activities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

158

(Continued)

37.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for
the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2020 and 2019
is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 37.1.

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Management has a credit policy in place
for approving the credit limits and the
exposures to credit risk are monitored
such that any outstanding debtors are
reviewed and followed up on an ongoing
basis. The Group's policy is to deal only
with creditworthy counterparties. Payment
record of customers is closely monitored.
Customers of IT Products and Services
with balances that are more than 90
days overdue are required to settled all
outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

Trade receivables and contract assets are
written off (i.e. derecognised) when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group has certain concentration of
credit risk in respect of trade receivables
as 51% (2019: 54%) of the total trade
receivables was due from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

37.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets that
are individually considered to be significant
have been separately assessed for ECL.
The Group makes periodic assessments
on the recoverability of the receivables
based on background and reputation of
the customers, historical settlements and
past experience. During the year ended 31
December 2020, no contract assets (2019:
HK$525,000) were individually written off in
full.

The Group has applied the simplified
approach to assess the ECL as prescribed
by HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the past due days.
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical elements and forward-
looking elements.

As at 31 December 2020, assessed lifetime
ECL rate of contract assets (2019: trade
receivables and contract assets) is minimal
for all ageing bands as there was no recent
history of default and continuous payments
were received.

The Group determined that the ECL allowance
in respect of trade receivables and contract
assets for the years ended 31 December 2019
is minimal as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BXEREERAAEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (&)
(Continued)
37.4 Credit risk (Continued) 374 FERRE)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) TEWEZ SR (#)
The ECL for trade receivables as at 31 MN-ZE_EF+-_A=+—
December 2020 was determined as follows: B EWESZEREZNEHE
EEEETOT :
Over 90 days
but within
0-90 days 1 year Over 1 year Total
90HNE
0-90H E-FRK BB-%F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TERT TART TEx
2020 “BCEE
ECL rate AHEEHBRE 0% to 3% 0% to 3% 100%
Gross carrying amount FA#E
- trade receivables —RBRBFER 6,141 24 132 6,297
Lifetime ECL BRERHEEEE 21 —* 132 153
& Less than HK$1,000 & LFA1,0008 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BXEREERAAEBEE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (&)

(Continued)

37.4 Credit risk (Continued) 374 FERREE)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (ii) R AT E R E M2 Eh

Other financial assets measured at amortised REEK AT =M E M SR
cost include other receivables and deposits B E I A fth R U I8 MR
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax (B FEFET FRIE KoaT ik
recoverable) and cash and bank balances. B EER) A KIR S KIRT
In order to minimise the credit risk, the TR - BEAERIEER
management of the Group would make B AREBTIEEKRIES
periodic collective and individual assessment EREETHEIBERLRIAR
on the recoverability of other receivables BRI ANER & R E b FE R
and deposits based on historical settlement 18 R %€ /9 a] U [0 1% F B
records and past experience as well as (TR M ERIFE Y - WEH
current external information and adjusted 8 LA sz B 48 =R 0 4 A9 A e
to reflect probability-weighted forward- HER - BIERBEES AL
looking information, including the default rate BRTIEM AR LR o [ B
where the relevant debtors operates. Other TFEHMESIEIEFE @ HRIER
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure BRETE AN B M EEIR o
that follow-up action is taken to recover mE - HiaEUWRIE
overdue debts. In these regards, the credit &TQ%ZETHK»%&&?‘%?
risk of other receivables and deposits are ® -

considered to be low.

+ EJJ:Ef H fth & U2
REZET(ZZE-N4F:
9,000,%75)5,@&(1!%\&%
WAE o R %% E Ath & WK IR
EHR(TREEMNKIBERA
WEIEER) » AN & B&RT
& R A E e W5k IE ik
eZEMEEEERE 12
BRAEBMEEBEEAEE
o REERZEH AR
FIERZRE(TBEEREMRK
BRAKEIEER) ZEFE
[BL B2 30 B K38 - HE B EIR
BE_Z_ZTFR-_Z—-N
F+_A=+—HILLFEY
EB o0 FE YR I (4 RO GRS
Fﬁ%y\ﬂ’ﬁ_zﬁﬂ D AR -

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
other receivables amounted to Nil (2019:
HK$9,000) were individually impaired in full.
Except for these balances in other receivables
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable), the Group has assessed that the
ECL for other receivables and deposits are
minimal under the 12-months ECL method
as there is no significant increase in credit
risk on these other receivables and deposits
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable) and the exposure to default is
minimal after considering the undertaking
provided to some of the receivables during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

162

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

37.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

The credit risk for bank balances is considered
to be insignificant because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings.

37.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain
an appropriate level of liquid assets to meet its
liguidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and 2019. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BIKRREERAAEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (&)
(Continued)
37.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 375 REIMEREE)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based INTNEHEROTIDERECBREE
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial ZARAEMBESRE
liabilities.
Within  Over 1 year Total
1 year or but within undiscounted Carrying
on demand 5 years amount amount
—FRH —FENE
RER BEFR RUBAE IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx T TET FTET
2020 —EEF
Trade payables ERE SRR 2,030 - 2,030 2,030
Other payables and HibERFIER
accrued charges HERREH 6,335 - 6,335 6,335
Amounts due to directors JEffEEZIE 8,088 - 8,088 8,088
Lease liabilities HE&E 538 907 1,445 1,358
16,991 907 17,898 17,811
2019 —E-NF
Trade payables BN E SR 1,076 = 1,076 1,076
Other payables and Hin BRFIER
accrued charges HERREH 6,051 = 6,051 6,051
Amounts due to directors JERNEEFUAE 9,682 = 9,682 9,682
Lease liabilities HE&E 477 208 685 658
17,286 208 17,494 17,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

37.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are grouped into three levels of a fair
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based
on the observability and significance of inputs to
the measurements, as follows:

° Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.

o Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BXERRBEERAABEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(Continued)
37.6 Fair value measurements of financial 376 SRMIEMNAABENEE)

instruments (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value on DEEEEERAARBEFENS
a recurring basis are grouped into the fair value MEERALALBERBRMOT :

hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R ER F=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
2020 “BCER
Financial assets at FVOCI RRABEF AR
(non-recycling) 2ENENSREE
(RATE)eE)
- Unlisted private equity fund —ELARARE
s - - 464 464
- Unlisted equity investments —FETRARE - - 22,638 22,638
- - 23,102 23,102
2019 —E-NE
Financial assets at FVOCI BRRRBEFARM
(non-recycling) FENENSREE
(FarglsE)
- Unlisted private equity fund —FEHAARE
e - - 476 476
- Unlisted equity investments —JFEEMBRARE - - 18,117 18,117
- - 18,593 18,593
There were no transfers between Level 1 and HE_Z-_ZTFR-_T—NF+=
Level 2 during the years ended 31 December A=1T—HILFE  F—HEF=
2020 and 2019. PRI
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E —FF+ - A=+—HIFFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BIKRREER AABEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (4&)
(Continued)
37.6 Fair value measurements of financial 376 TRTENAAREBETESE)
instruments (Continued)
The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the DEARNLBEERE =M ARE
Group's financial instruments classified within EemT EMRMESROT ¢
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-8E —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FHIT
Unlisted private equity fund FEFTRARZEES
Fair value at 1 January R—R—BHRAREE 476 =
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in REME2ERRZEAN AL ERE
other comprehensive income (B518) Wz (12) 476
Fair value at 31 December Rt A=+—HN2REE 464 476
Unlisted equity investments FELETRAKRE
Fair value at 1 January R—A—HBHAAEBE 18,117 11,926
Fair value gain recognised in other REMEEYERN DL BE
comprehensive income Wz 4,521 6,191
Fair value at 31 December RT-A=+—BHAAREE 22,638 18,117
Fair value gain/(loss) on unlisted equity investments ELETMPRATERIELETRARE
and unlisted private equity fund is recognised in EesmanBaERZ (BE)RE
other comprehensive income and included under mEEEAER - Wit Al AR
“Fair value reserve (non-recycling)”. EEREB(TTEE) BT -
There have been no transfers into or out of Level 3 REBEE_ZE-_ZEFR_ZT—NEFT+
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. ZA=tT—HIEFEWmE A

HE=R -
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e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 2 L —FF+ —H=1—HIFEZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BXEREERAAEBEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (&)
(Continued)

37.6 EMIENAREBETERE)

37.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value
of the unlisted private equity fund is measured
using valuation techniques with reference to
the net assets values. The directors believe that
the change in fair value (which is included in
other comprehensive income) derived from the
valuation technique is reasonable and is the most
appropriate value at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair
value of an unlisted equity investment has been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers, using the adjusted
net assets method as the major assets are
leasehold land, construction in progress and
investment properties to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation. The value of those major assets has
been adjusted to their fair value at the reporting
date using market comparison method, residual
method and income capitalisation method for
the purpose of determining the Group’s share of
adjusted net assets value and fair value of the
investment. The significant unobservable inputs
include lack of marketability discount of 30% (2019:
25%), monthly rental rate of RMB45.9/sg.m. (2019:
RMB46.5/sq.m.), market yield of 4.5% (2019:
4.5%), market price of land of RMB2,117/sq.m
(2019: RMB813/sg.m) and market price of property
of RMB11,131/sgq.m (2019: RMB11,430/sqg.m).
The higher the lack of marketability discount and
market yield would result in lower fair value. The
higher the monthly rental rate, market price of
land and market price of property would result in
higher fair value.
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38.

168

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and
raises new debt financing.
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